
1 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2026 
6:30 P.M. 

Meeting to be held at City Hall 
301 West Main Street 

AGENDA 

OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 5, 2026: 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose.
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak.
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any

City official in attendance.
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held.

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose
such questions.

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

None. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. CDBG Housing Grant Application.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment regarding the
proposed application to the Michigan State Housing Development Authority for a grant to assist in the
improvement of owner-occupied, single-family homes of low- to moderate- income residents and
consider authorizing said application, approval of a substantial amendment to the grant, and further
approval of the related authorizing resolution, procurement procedure, and determination of level of
environmental review.
Master Plan Implementation Goals:    1.9, 1.10, 1.13, 2.6, 6.6

CITIZEN COMMENTS  

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Proposed Special Assessment Project—Woodlawn Avenue. Authorize Resolution No. 2 for proposed
Special Assessment District No. 2026-01 for Woodlawn Avenue from Monroe Street to Corunna
Avenue for street rehabilitation, schedule public hearing for February 2, 2026.
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4, 3.10



2 

2. Purchase Order Amendment-Bulk Carbon Dioxide. Authorize amendment to Purchase Order
with Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc. for bulk carbon dioxide, increasing the unit price from $0.11 per pound or
$220 per ton to $0.12 per pound or $240 per ton, raising the total estimated cost for the FY 2025-
2026 to $17,020.20, and further authorize payment to the supplier up to the increased amount based
on unit prices for actual quantities required.
Master Plan Implementation Goals:    3.4

3. Change Order- Valve Replacement Project. Approve Change Order No. 1 to the Valve Replacement
Project with John E. Green Company increasing the amount by $11,134.00 for additional work and
materials needed to dismantle, clean and reinstall a section of pipe, and further approve payment to
the contractor up to the amount of $70,134.00.
Master Plan Implementation Goals:    3.4

4. Contract Authorization – Owosso Charter Township Ambulance Service. Approve contract with
Owosso Charter Township to provide ambulance services on their behalf to the township in the
amount of $125.00 per residence, plus charges for businesses, churches, and campgrounds.
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.1

5. Bid Award — 2026 Water Main Replacement — Contract 1. Approve bid award to Fleis &
Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc., for the 2026 Water Main Replacement Project — Contract 1, in the
amount of $377,600.00 for engineering and construction administration services, contingent upon the
receipt of DWSRF bond proceeds, and further approve payment up to the contract amount upon
satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof.
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4, 3.7, 5.3, 5.27, 6.6

6. Bid Award — 2026 Water Main Replacement —Contract 2. Approve bid award to Fishbeck,
Thompson, Carr & Hubber, Inc., DBA Fishbeck for the 2026 Water Main Replacement Project —
Contract 2 in the amount of $358,400.00, contingent upon the receipt of DWSRF bond proceeds, and
further approve payment up to the contract amount upon satisfactory completion of the work or
portion thereof.
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4, 3.7, 5.3, 5.27, 6.6

7. Contract Amendment – City Hall Improvements Project – Engineering Services Contract.  Approve
Amendment No. 2 to the engineering services contract with Spicer Group for the City Hall
Improvements Project adding $4,400.00 for additional engineering services during the pre-bid and
post-bid processes, and authorize payment to the vendor up to the amount of $48,400.00.
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.8, 4.7, 6.7

8. Warrant No. 661.  Authorize Warrant  No.661 as follows:

Date Vendor Description Fund Amount
1/7/2026 Waste Management WWTP Refuge Disposal Services WWTP $10,366.20 
1/8/2026 Caledonia Twp 25% payment per Water District 

Agreement Water $73,886.07 

1/8/2026 Owosso Twp 25% Payment per Water 
Agreement Water $22,242.59 

Total $106,494.86

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

1. Contract Approvals – Ludington Electric, Inc.  Reiterate acknowledgement of the pecuniary interest of
Councilmember in the contract(s) in question and consider approval of $757.74 in contracts with
Ludington Electric, Inc. for the period of December 2025.

2. Mortgage Discharge – 520 Comstock Street.  Consider authorizing discharge of mortgage as it
relates to 520 Comstock Street and further authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute appropriate
documents.



3 

3. Charter Amendment Chapter 15 section 4 – Collection of Delinquent Utility Charges. Authorize the
resolution proposing a Charter amendment to Chapter 15, Section 4 of the Owosso City Charter and
approving ballot language for submission to the voters at the August 4, 2026 regular election,
consistent with City Council’s Fiscal Year 2025–26 annual goals.
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.1, 3.3

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2025 Building Department Report.
2. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2025 Code Violations Report.
3. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2025 Inspections Report.
4. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2025 Rental Report.
5. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2025 Certificates Issued Report.
6. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  December 2025 Police Report.
7. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  Year end 2025 Police Statistics.
8. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  December 2025 Fire Report.
9. Downtown Development Authority.  Minutes of January 7, 2026.
10. Owosso Historical Commission. Minutes of January 12, 2026.

NEXT MEETING 

Monday, February 02, 2026 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 

Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2026 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2027 
Historical Commission – term expires 12-31-2026 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2028 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City 
Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. 
The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  



PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE FOLLOWING MEETING 
CAN ONLY BE VIEWED VIRTUALLY 

The Owosso City Council will conduct an in-person meeting on January 20, 2026.  Citizens may view and listen 
to the meeting using the following link and phone numbers.  

OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, January 20, 2026 AT 6:30 P.M. 

The public joining the meeting via Zoom CANNOT participate in public comment. 

• Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87059860458?pwd=M48nLaVCeYNoqMTDXWUbmQtLySi3xo.1
Meeting ID:  870 5986 0458
Passcode:  543510

One tap mobile

+13126266799,,81130530177#,,,,*017514# US (Chicago)
+16465588656,,81130530177#,,,,*017514# US (New York)

Dial by your location 

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

• For video instructions visit:

o Signing up and Downloading Zoom https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
o Joining a Zoom Meeting https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
o Joining and Configuring Audio and Video https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY

• Helpful notes for participants:    Helpful Hints

• Meeting packets are published on the City of Owosso website  http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us

Any person who wishes to contact members of the City Council to provide input or ask questions on any 
business coming before the Council on December 15, 2025 may do so by calling or e-mailing the City Clerk’s 
Office prior to the meeting at (989)725-0500 or city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. Contact information for individual 
Council members can be found on the City website at: http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council  

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with 
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing 
the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; 
Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  

https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Portals/0/Files/Documents/CouncilVirtualMeetingNotice-HelpfulHints.pdf
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council
file://coo-dc1/users$/AKKirkland/Documents/PublicNotices/city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 01-05-2026

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF JANUARY 5, 2026      
6:30 P.M. 

VIRGINIA TEICH CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

PRESIDING OFFICER: MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 

OPENING PRAYER: PASTOR BILL MOULL 
OWOSSO FREE METHODIST CHURCH 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 

PRESENT: Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem Jerome C. Haber, 
Councilmembers Janae L. Fear, Emily S. Olson, Rachel M. Osmer, and 
Christopher D. Owens. 

ABSENT: Councilmember Carl C. Ludington. 

APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Councilmember Olson to approve the agenda as presented. 

Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 15, 2025 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Haber to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 15, 2025 
as presented. 

Motion supported by Councilmember Olson and concurred in by unanimous vote. 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

*Audit Presentation

Presentation of the annual audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025 by Ken Berthiaume, Principal
CPA, with Berthiaume & Co. CPAs, via Zoom.  He reported that the audit went smoothly, there were no
problems with procedures and controls, and very few adjusting journal entries were required.  He further
noted that the City appears to be healthy financially, with a strong balance sheet, stable business funds,
and adequate cash balances.  Mr. Berthiaume gave the City an unmodified opinion and said that its
financial statements fairly state the condition of the City as of June 30, 2025.

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Brandon Albrecht, 1307 Young Street, said he was saddened to see the problems with drug use and 
homelessness just down the street from his house.  He expressed frustration that calling the police 



Draft 2 01-05-2026 

doesn’t seem to resolve the problem.  He went on to comment that the direction the town is headed is not 
good and will eventually result in people leaving, including his family. 
 
Joseph Moore, property owner of 304 Michigan Avenue, said he thought the City’s enforcement of the 
rental inspection policy is unequal and unfair with some landlords getting away without having their 
property inspected for years at a time and are not fined for violations.  He said he works hard to be a 
good landlord and wondered why the rules seem to apply to some, but not all, landlords. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Councilmember Osmer gave positive comments about the sled library at the sledding hill and the New 
Year’s Eve Ball Drop event.  She went on to say that two local churches continue to serve as warming 
centers and are looking for volunteers to cook meals and monitor the overnight shelter.  She encouraged 
the City to do more this year to help the community, suggesting it could start by helping to preserve and 
repair existing homes and protect renters and single-family homes. 
 
Mayor Teich and Councilmember Olson expressed an interest in reviewing the rental inspection policy.  
City Manager Henne noted that the current policy requires an inspection once every five years, though a 
reduction to three years had been discussed in the past.  He went on to say that the Building Department 
is slightly behind in the rental inspection process, and he has spoken to them. 
 
Councilmember Fear inquired how many rental properties the City has?  Mr. Henne noted that he will see 
that that information is included in future Building Department reports. 
 
Councilmember Olson suggested maybe grant funding could be made available for single-family 
residential owners to build accessory dwelling units on their property to help ease the shortage of homes.  
City Manager Henne suggested she pass the idea along to Representative BeGole and Senator Singh. 
 
Mayor Teich asked Public Safety Director Lenkart to speak to Mr. Albrecht about his issues.  He went on 
to thank Councilmember Owens for another great New Year’s Eve event downtown, as well as Pastor Bill 
Moull for being a constant positive presence and for all of his efforts to support Council. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Osmer to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Set Public Hearing – CDBG Grant Acceptance.  Set a public hearing for Tuesday, January 20, 2025 to 
receive citizen comment regarding the proposal to accept CDBG grant funding for interior and exterior 
improvements on eight qualified residential homes as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2026 
 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING RECEIVE CITIZEN COMMENT REGARDING 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO CDBG HOUSING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has received an additional CDBG grant 
to assist single family homeowners with interior and exterior improvements to their homes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG program requires a public hearing to receive citizen comment regarding the 
objectives of the grant, permitted activities, eligible locations, and the amounts allocated to each activity. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that a public hearing is set for Tuesday, January 20, 2026 at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council 
Chambers to receive citizen comment regarding the City’s CDBG Housing Improvement Program. 



Draft 3 01-05-2026 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:     1.1, 1.9  
 
 

Boards and Commissions Appointment.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointment: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Jayne Brown* Board of Review 12-31-2030 

 * Indicates reappointment 
 
 
Designation of Street Administrator.  Authorize resolution designating DPW Superintendent Thomas 
Wheeler as Street Administrator to represent the City in transactions with the State Transportation 
Department pursuant to Act 51 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 02-2026 
 

DESIGNATION OF STREET ADMINISTRATOR 
 

WHEREAS, Section 13(9) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 provided that each incorporated city and village 
to which funds are returned under the provisions of this section, that, "the responsibility for street 
improvements, maintenance, and traffic operations work, and the development, construction, or repair of 
off-street parking facilities and construction or repair of street lighting shall be coordinated by a single 
administrator to be designated by the governing body who shall be responsible for and shall represent the 
municipality in transactions with the State Transportation Department pursuant to this act."  

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this Honorable Body designates DPW Superintendent Thomas 
Wheeler as the single Street Administrator for the City of Owosso in all transactions with the State 
Transportation Department as provided in Section 13 of the Act. 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4, 3.22 
 

Professional Services Agreement Extension – Audit Services.  Approve extension of the professional 
services agreement with Berthiaume & Company for auditing services for the 2026 and 2027 fiscal years 
as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 03-2026 
 

AUTHORIZING EXTENSION OF A MULTI YEAR SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 
BERTHIAUME & COMPANY 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Michigan is required to have an independent audit performed annually 
according to the Government Accounting Standards Board, American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, Government Accountability Office and the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso Charter states an independent audit shall be made of all accounts of the 
city government at the close of each fiscal year….(section 8.14); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved a contract with Berthiaume & Company of May 1, 2023 for 
auditing services and now wishes to extend said contract to include the audits for the 2026 and 2027 
fiscal years.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO, 
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN: 



Draft 4 01-05-2026 

 
FIRST: that the city of Owosso has heretofore determined that extending the agreement with 

Berthiaume & Company, certified public accountants, is advisable and necessary, for the 
conduct and preparation of audit of the basic financial statements and single audit for the 
city of Owosso, Michigan; 

 
SECOND: that the City of Owosso chooses to act on optional years 4 and 5 of the service 

agreement; and 
 
THIRD: that the city clerk and mayor is hereby instructed and authorized to sign a service 

agreement for the city of Owosso reflecting optional years 4 and 5. 
 
FOURTH: Annual payments are hereby approved per the submitted auditing proposal as indicated 

below from various funds being audited. 
 

1. $31,715 (Year 4) 
2. $33,135 (Year 5) 

 
 

Professional Services Agreement - Private Credit Assessment Services.  Approve professional 
services agreement with S&P Global, Inc., for the provision of private credit assessment services in the 
amount of $40,950.00, which price may increase in 2026, for DWRF Project No. 7920.01, and CWRF 
Project No. 6034.01 and further approve payment to the firm upon satisfactory completion of the 
contracted tasks as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-2026 
 

AUTHORIZING A CREDIT ASSESSMENT SERVICES FROM  
S&P GLOBAL RATINGS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, will be asked to approve a resolution of 
intent to issue revenue bonds per Public Act 94 of 1933, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, such revenue bonds will be purchased by the State of Michigan under their Drinking Water 
Revolving Loan Fund program and Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan programs require municipalities to include a private credit assessment 
with their application; and 
 
WHEREAS, professional services are exempt from the city’s adopted purchasing ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, S&P Global, Inc., provides such service that meets the requirements of the State of Michigan 
programs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into a professional service agreement with S&P Global, Inc., to 
provide a private credit assessment. 

 
SECOND: Private credit rating assessment services are associated with a revenue bond issuance 

involving the State of Michigan Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Program and Clean 
Water Revolving Loan Fund Program. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay S&P Global, Inc., for work 



Draft 5 01-05-2026 

satisfactorily completed at a cost estimate of $40,950 under said professional service 
agreement, which may increase. 

 
FOURTH: This expense shall be paid from the Water Fund 591.901.972.000-DWRF792001 and 

WWTP Fund 599.901.977.000 CWSR603401. 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:     3.4, 3.7 
 
 

Professional Services Agreement - Governmental Accounting Services.  Authorize a professional 
services agreement with Taylor and Morgan, C.P.A., P.C. for the provision of onsite governmental 
accounting services in an amount not to exceed $30,000.00 for the 2026 calendar year, and further 
authorize payment to the firm for services rendered in accordance with the contract as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 05-2026 
 

AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH  
TAYLOR & MORGAN, P.C. 

FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is required to complete an independent 
audit per Section 8.4 of the Owosso City Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Department has statutory responsibilities per Section 7.5 of the Owosso City 
Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, Taylor & Morgan, P.C., a full service public accounting firm, has submitted a proposal for 
onsite accounting services for the calendar year ending December 31, 2026; and 
 
WHEREAS, the employment of professional services is an exception to competitive bidding per Section 
2-346(2) of the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into a professional service agreement with Taylor & Morgan P.C. 
for governmental accounting services, annual budget creation, monthly reconciliation and 
annual independent audit preparation services. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in form attached as Professional Services Agreement between the City of Owosso and 
Taylor & Morgan P.C. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Taylor & Morgan P.C. for work 

satisfactorily completed under said professional services agreement,  estimated at 
$30,000. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from General Fund Account 101.201.818.000. 

 
 

Purchase Authorization - Bentley Park Splashpad.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize 
the purchase and installation of splashpad equipment from Waterplay Solutions Corp., in the amount of 
$166,046.00 and further authorize payment to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery and installation of the 
splashpad equipment as follows: 
 



Draft 6 01-05-2026 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2026 
 

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A 
WATERPLAY SPLASHPAD VIA 

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT #010521-WTR 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a Parks and Recreation Commission 
requiring the purchase and installation of splashpad equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso may waive competitive bidding requirements when purchasing equipment 
in coordination with another unit of government. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso desires to purchase splashpad equipment from Waterplay Solutions 
Corp., holder of the Sourcewell contract #010521-WTR with the State of Minnesota; and it is hereby 
determined that Waterplay Solutions Corp., is qualified to provide such equipment and that it has 
submitted the responsible and responsive bid; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary, and in the 
public interest to purchase splashpad equipment, utilizing Sourcewell Contract No. 
#010521-WTR, for a cost to the City of Owosso of $166,046.00. 

 
SECOND:  The Finance Director and the City Manager are hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

necessary documents to complete the purchase. 
 
THIRD:  Authorize payment to Waterplay Solutions Corp., in the amount of $166,046.00 upon 

delivery and installation of the splashpad equipment. 
 
FOURTH:  The above expenses shall be paid from the parks millage fund 208-751-974.000 in the 

amount of $166,046.00. 
 

 
Payment Authorization - Legal Services Payment.  Authorize payment to Dickinson Wright PLLC, in 
the amount of $7,753.06 for bond counsel services associated with the installment purchase agreement 
to purchase a street sweeper and vactor/jetter truck, as approved in Resolution No. 99-2025 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-2026 
 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is a city located in the state of Michigan; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Public Act 99 of 1933 authorizes cities to enter into contracts and agreements for the 
purchase of real or personal property for public purposes for no more than 15 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso financed the purchase of a single curb side gutter broom street sweeper 
and vactor combination sewer cleaner truck via PA 99 of 1933; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dickinson Wright PLLC was appointed bond counsel to complete the installment purchase 
agreement between the City of Owosso and Huntington Bank; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 



Draft 7 01-05-2026 

 
FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 

public interest to pay Dickinson Wright PLLC for services rendered as bond counsel. 
 
SECOND: Bond counsel services were associated with an installment purchase agreement as 

authorized under Public Act 99 of 1933. 
 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Dickinson Wright PLLC for work 

satisfactorily completed at a cost of $7,753.06. 
 
FOURTH: The above expense shall be paid from the Fleet Fund (661.901.979.000) 

 
 

*AP Check Register – December 2025.  Affirm Accounts Payable check disbursements totaling 
$3,671,044.75 for December 2025. 

 
 

*Payroll Check Register – December 2025.  Affirm Payroll check disbursements totaling $408,371.58 for 
the period from November 27, 2025 to December 20, 2025. 
 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Olson. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Owens, Olson, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Fear, Osmer, 

and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Ludington. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 

*Audit Acceptance 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson to approve a resolution accepting and placing on file the City of Owosso 
Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2026 
 

ACCEPTING AND PLACING ON FILE 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is required by the laws of the state of Michigan to annually have an 
independent audit performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso City Charter requires an independent audit be made of all accounts of the city 
government at the close of each fiscal year per section 8.14; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso employed Berthiaume and Company, certified public accountants, to 
audit the financial records of the City of Owosso and said audit has been completed and is presented this 
date to the city council. 
 



Draft 8 01-05-2026

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

FIRST: The City of Owosso Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A, is hereby accepted and placed on 
file. 

SECOND: A copy of the City of Owosso, Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2025 will be maintained on file in the office of the city clerk for public examination, a copy 
will be placed in the Shiawassee District Library Owosso Branch for public examination, 
and copies will be sent to those required by law and agreement. 

Motion supported by Councilmember Fear. 

Roll Call Vote. 

AYES: Councilmember Olson, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Owens, Osmer, Fear, 
and Mayor Teich. 

NAYS: None. 

ABSENT: Councilmember Ludington. 

Notice of Pecuniary Interest  

Motion by Councilmember Owens  to enter notice of pecuniary interest on the record for Councilmember 
Carl Ludington as it relates to proposed contracts with Ludington Electric, Inc. for the month of December 
2025 as follows: 

STATEMENT REGARDING BUSINESS DEALINGS WITH THE CITY 
Per Owosso City Charter Section 14.4 and Michigan Public Act 317 of 1968, as amended 

I, Carl Ludington, being an officer of the City of Owosso, do hereby declare a pecuniary interest in the 
following proposed contract(s) with the City of Owosso as described as: 

PO NUMBER DEPT. VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

000047425 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. 
REPLACING BURNED UP WIRES ON 
WASHINGTON STREET 

185.26 

000047456 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. 
NEW 20 AMP CIRCUIT FOR CHRISTMAS 
TREE 

452.48 

000047501 863 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. 
INVOICE NO. 28935 09-26-25, REPLACED 
CONTRACTOR SILO 

120.00 

 $  75.74  

For the Period of: December 2025  

Vendor: Ludington Electric, Inc 

Total Amount: $757.74 

I am making this declaration because I am the owner/operator of Ludington Electric, Inc.  I confirm that I 
will not vote on the matter(s) in question, I will not take part in discussion on any question in respect to the 
matter(s), and I will not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to influence the 
voting on any such question at a public meeting of the Owosso City Council. 



Draft 9 01-05-2026

Said items will be considered for approval at the January 20, 2026 meeting of the Owosso City Council. 

Declared this 5th day of January, 2026. 

Motion supported by Councilmember Olson. 

Roll Call Vote. 

AYES: Councilmember Olson, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Owens, Osmer, Fear, 
and Mayor Teich. 

NAYS: None. 

ABSENT: Councilmember Ludington. 

Set Special Meeting 

Motion by Councilmember Olson to set a special meeting for Thursday, February 26, 2026 at 6:30 p.m. in 
the City Hall Council Chambers for the Council’s annual goal setting session. 

Motion supported by Councilmember Owens. 

Roll Call Vote. 

AYES: Councilmember Osmer, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Owens, Fear, Olson, 
and Mayor Teich. 

NAYS: None. 

ABSENT: Councilmember Ludington. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Brandon Albrecht, 1307 Young Street, said he’s not here tonight simply to complain, he recognizes that 
the City Council is already dealing with challenges, but we’ve tried the same techniques year after year 
without seeing real change.  He said its time to try something new, it starts right here, and he would like to 
be part of it. 

Joseph Moore, 641 N. Shiawassee Street, said he had just purchased a rental home that had not been 
inspected in 10 years.  He suggested the City do better. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

None. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

*Nathan R. Henne, City Manager.  City Manager Report – December 2025.

COMMUNICATIONS 



Draft 10 01-05-2026

Brad A. Barrett, Finance Director.  FY2025 Pension and OPEB Report. 
Brad A. Barrett, Finance Director.  Financial Report – November 2025. 
Owosso Historical Commission.  Minutes of December 08, 2025. 

NEXT MEETING 

Tuesday, January 20, 2026 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 

Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2026 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2028 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Councilmember Olson for adjournment at 7:40 p.m. 

Motion supported by Councilmember Owens and concurred in by unanimous vote. 

__________________________________________ 
Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 

__________________________________________ 
Amy K. Kohagen, City Clerk 

*Due to their length, text of marked items is not included in the minutes.  Full text of these documents is on
file in the Clerk's Office.



MEMORANDUM 

Build ing Department 301 W Main St  Owosso, MI 989-725-0535 

DATE: January 9, 2026 

TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 

FROM: Tanya Buckelew, Planning & Building Director 

SUBJECT: Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) and Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Hearing and authorization to submit 
Application 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A Public Hearing will be held this evening to inform citizens of the proposed objectives, 
activities, locations and amounts to be used for each activity of the Community Development 
Block Grant and to approve the substantial amendment and change to the existing grant 
agreement by adopting the Authorizing Resolution. 

BACKGROUND: 
• The City applied for and has been awarded a CDBG Grant for $454,300 (City match is

not required).  This includes reimbursement for administrative costs.
• This grant is for interior and exterior renovations to owner-occupied, single-family homes

(i.e. roofing, windows, furnace, water heater, electrical updates) that will benefit low- to
moderate- income households.

• Each household can receive up to $40,000 for improvements.
• ADDITIONAL AWARD – On December 16, 2025, the City was awarded an additional

CDBG grant for $472,000.
• The current grant agreement (#NDD-2023-37-MIN) will be amended for a total award of

$926,300.

FISCAL IMPACTS:  

Minimal impact on the budget as the City will be reimbursed for the administrative costs 
associated with this grant. 



RESOLUTION NO. 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

THE MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (MSHDA) NEIGHBORHOOD 
HOUSING INITIATIVES DIVISION (NHID) 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso applied for and has been awarded a CDBG Grant (MIN 1.0) for $454,300 
to assist low- to moderate-income residents, owning and occupying permanent single-family homes in 
funding interior and exterior home improvements to meet code requirements such as roof replacement, 
windows, plumbing, electrical, mechanical and insulation.  This excludes cosmetic only renovations and 
upgrades; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has received an additional CDBG grant (MIN 2.0) in the amount of $472,000 
to assist more of said single-family homeowners, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso wishes to amend the current grant agreement (#NDD-2023-37-MIN) to 
reflect the additional award for a new grant total of $926,300, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will not be required to match any grant dollars, but will serve as the 
administrator of the grant and pass-through entity for grant funds and will abide by the terms and 
conditions set forth in the grant agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the City of Owosso’s Master Plan Goals; and 

WHEREAS, the beneficiaries of this grant will include residents of the City of Owosso with qualified incomes 
that meet the CDBG requirements; and 

WHEREAS, each household can receive up to $40,000 for improvements; and 

WHEREAS, qualification for the program is determined by the application process; and 

WHEREAS, no project costs (CDBG and non CDBG) will be incurred prior to a formal grant award, 
completion of the environmental review procedures and formal, written authorization to incur costs has 
been provided by the City’s Designated CDBG Specialist; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council voted and approved this Resolution on January 20, 2026 to submit along with 
the grant amendment request; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to  
approve submission of CDBG grant amendment to the Michigan State Housing 
Development Authority Neighborhood Housing Initiatives Division. 

SECOND: City Manager Nathan R. Henne and Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew are 
designated as Authorized Signers for said grant with the authority to sign the associated 
grant application and all attachments, the grant agreement and all amendments, and 
Payment Requests. 

THIRD: Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew is designated as the CDBG appointed 
Grant Administrator for said grant and is authorized to administer associated projects to 
completion in accordance with the Program Guidelines. 

FOURTH: Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew is designated as the Certifying Officer for 
the NEPA Environmental Review. 



MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  CDBG 

 

 

2-D GRANT AMENDMENT REQUEST  06/25/24 
1 

GRANT AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 

Date 01/20/2026 Amendment # 1 

Grantee Name City of Owosso 

Grant # NDD-2023-37-MIN 

Project Title MIN 1.0 & 2.0 Housing Renovations 

Type of Amendment Request(s)   1. Budget    2. Grant Extension    3. Scope 

NOTE:  Substantive change(s) may require revised documents, see Items 4, 5, 6 below. 

 
 

1. BUDGET 
Reason and justification:  To combine MIN 2.0 with MIN 1.0 
 
Attach  cost estimate,  bid tabulation,  change order, OR  other supporting documentation. 
If UGLG or Private match increase, attach  verification of additional funding. 
 

COMPLETE BUDGETS BELOW AND LIST ALL GRANT AGREEMENT ACTIVITIES  

A.  ACTIVITY 
DESCRIPTION 

B.  CURRENT APPROVED BUDGET C.  REQUESTED BUDGET 

CDBG LOCAL STATE  PRIVATE   OTHER  CDBG LOCAL STATE  PRIVATE   OTHER  

MIN 1.0 
Housing 
Rehab 

385,000                         385,000                         

MIN 1.0 
Admin 

69,300                         69,300                         

MIN 2.0 
Housing 
Rehab 

                              400,000                         

MIN 2.0 
Admin 

                              72,000                         

                                                                  

                                                                  

SUBTOTAL 454,300                         926,300                         

TOTAL $ 454,300 and 100% of CDBG funds (not admin) $ 926,300 and 100% of CDBG funds (not admin) 

 

 

2. GRANT EXTENSION 

Current Approved Grant Period 
Proposed Grant Period 

10/01/2024 to 08/31/2026 

      to       

Reason and justification:  No change 
 

 ACTIVITIES CURRENT END DATE REQUESTED END DATE 

Engineering and/or Design             

Property Acquisition             

Bidding             

Construction             

                  

                  

                  

COMMENCEMENT CURRENT START DATE REQUESTED START DATE 

Commencement Date             
 

  
 



MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  CDBG 

 

 

2-D GRANT AMENDMENT REQUEST  06/25/24 
3 

 

3. SCOPE 
Describe any changes in project scope:  Adding 10 homes to the original 10 proposed 
Reason and justification:  With the additional funding award of $472,000, the City is proposed to renovate a total of 20 
homes 
 

 

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE(S) MAY REQUIRE THE FOLLOWING: 

4. New/Updated Environmental Review 
  Yes    No   If yes, attach documentation. 

Comments:  Tier I review was approved for MIN 1.0 and is valid for MIN 2.0  
 

5. Revised Map 
  Yes    No   If yes, attach revised maps, highlighting changes. 

Comments:        
 

6. Special Public Hearing 
  Yes    No   If yes, attach publication, minutes from meeting and brief description. 

Comments:  A public hearing was held on January 20, 2026 and the attached Authorized Resolution was adopted. 
 

 
 

7. REQUESTED BY: 
 
Sign: 

 
 

  Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director 
 

Date 

 

FOR STATE USE ONLY Approved By Disapproved By Date 

CDBG Specialist 

   

CDBG Program Manager 

   

Comments:        

 

tsbuckelew
Typewritten text
01/20/2026



MEMORANDUM 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

DATE: January 12, 2026 

TO: Owosso City Council 

FROM: Nathan Henne, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Woodlawn Avenue Rehabilitation – Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 

Each year the City considers a street program to improve selected city streets.  Streets are selected for 
inclusion in the program either by citizen initiated petition or by selection by the City.  Woodlawn Avenue, 
from Monroe Street to Corunna Avenue (M-71), is proposed by the City for street rehabilitation. 
Reconstruction and or resurfacing of these streets is funded in part via special assessment.  Special 
Assessment is the process by which a portion of the cost for making a local improvement is assessed 
against a property owner based upon the value that the property receives from the improvement.  The 
City assumes the remaining portion of the cost (public benefit portion).  In recent years, the City has 
spread this amount as 60% public benefit and 40% property benefit for assessable items.  The City 
usually finances special assessments for property owners over a 10, 15, or 20 year period (determined by 
method of construction) at 3% interest.  The property owner can pay an assessment in one lump sum or 
in installments over the 10, 15, or 20 year period.  

The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying 
resolution.  

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the special assessment district(s), directs the City Manager to 
estimate project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the proposed 
improvements. Resolution No. 1 for the proposed improvement was approved by City Council at its 
November 17, 2025 meeting.  

Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs notices to 
be sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of the public 
hearing date, and the estimated amount of their assessment. City Council is asked to act upon Resolution 
No. 2 on January 20, 2026 for the proposed improvement, setting a public hearing for Tuesday, 
February 2, 2026. 

Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected 
residents with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the proper 
scale.  After hearing citizen comment on the project the City Council has three options:  1) If council 
agrees that the project should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to go 
on with the next steps of the proposed project, including obtaining bids; 2) If council agrees the project 
should go forward, but with some adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and 
proceed; 3) If council determines the project is not warranted and should not proceed at all they would 
simply fail to act on Resolution No. 3, effectively stopping the process. 

Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment amounts are 
adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A second public hearing 
is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  Each property owner is sent a 



second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and the amount of the proposed 
assessment for their property.  

Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment roll 
and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the opportunity 
to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to the benefit they 
receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides adjustments need to be 
made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the assessments are fair and 
equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

Tonight the council will be considering Resolution No. 2 for the proposed district as a part of the Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 2 for the following district, setting the hearing of 
necessity for Tuesday, February 2, 2026: 
 

Woodlawn Avenue, a Public Street, from Monroe Street to Corunna Avenue (M-71)  
 
For the following work: 
 
STREET REHABILITATION: REPLACEMENT OF PAVEMENT SECTION; SELECT CURB AND GUTTER 
REPLACEMENT; SELECT SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT; ADA SIDEWALK RAMP INSTALLATION 
 
Attachments:  Resolution No. 2 – Woodlawn Avenue 
 Special Assessment Roll – Woodlawn Avenue 
 Engineer’s Estimate - Woodlawn Avenue 
 Special Assessment District Map – Woodlawn Avenue 
 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 3.4, 3.10 
 



Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 for Woodlawn Avenue 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2026-02 Woodlawn Avenue, a Public Street, from Monroe 

Street to Corunna Avenue (M-71) 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WOODLAWN AVENUE 
FROM MONROE STREET TO CORUNNA AVENUE (M-71) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered the City Manager to prepare a report for public improvement, 
more particularly hereinafter described; and 
 

WOODLAWN AVENUE, A PUBLIC STREET, FROM MONROE STREET TO CORUNNA 
AVENUE (M-71); 
STREET REHABILITATION 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager prepared said report and the same has been filed with the City Council as 
required by the Special Assessment Ordinance of the City of Owosso and the Council has reviewed said 
report. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The plans and estimate of cost and the report of the City Manager for said public improvement shall 

be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be available for public examination. 
 
2. The City Council hereby determines that the Public Improvement hereinafter set forth may be 

necessary. 
 
3. The City Council hereby approves the estimate of cost of said public improvement to be 

$345,816.00 and determines that $60,874.70 thereof shall be paid by special assessment imposed 
on the lots and parcels of land more particularly hereinafter set forth, which lots and parcels of land 
are hereby designated to be all of the lots and parcels of land to be benefited by said improvements 
and determines that $284,941.30 of the cost thereof shall be paid by the City at large because of 
benefit to the City at large. 

 
4. The City Council hereby determines that the portion of the cost of said public improvement to be 

specially assessed shall be assessed in accordance with the benefits to be received. 
 
5. The City Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, February 2 , 

2026 for the purpose of hearing all persons to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the time and place of the hearing to be 

published once in The Argus Press, the official newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than 
seven (7) days prior to the date of said hearing and shall further cause notice of said hearing to be 
sent by first class mail to each owner of property subject to assessment, as indicated by the records 
in the City Assessor's Office as shown on the general tax roll of the City, at least (10) full days 
before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the addresses shown on said general 
tax rolls of the City. 

 
7. The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT HEARING 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

 



TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 
 

Woodlawn Avenue, a Public Street, from Monroe Street to Corunna Avenue (M-71) 
 
TAKE NOTICE that the City Council intends to acquire and construct the following described public 
improvement: Street Rehabilitation. 
 
The City Council intends to defray a part or all of the cost of the above-described public improvement by 
special assessment against the above described property. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that City Council has caused plans and an estimate of the cost and report for 
the above described public improvement to be prepared and made by the City Manager and the same is 
on file with the City Clerk and available for public examination. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers, 
Owosso, Michigan at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, February 2, 2026 for the purpose of hearing any person to be 
affected by the proposed public improvement. 



19-Dec-25 RESO 2
WOODLAWN AVENUE FROM MONROE STREET TO COURNNA AVENUE (M-71) ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT  ELLIGIBLE 
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60 PERCENT 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

RESIDENTIAL 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

COMMERCIAL 
Mobilization, Max __, (Road and Storm) 1 LSUM 24,400.00$          $        24,400.00 24,400.00$     14,640.00$     9,760.00$             9,760.00$             
Sewer, Rem, Less than 24 inch 40 Ft 40.00$                 $          1,600.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Curb and Gutter, Rem 550 Ft 15.00$                 $          8,250.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Pavt, Rem 100 Syd 15.00$                 $          1,500.00 1,500.00$       900.00$          600.00$                600.00$                
Sidewalk, Rem 200 Syd 15.00$                 $          3,000.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Embankment, CIP 50 Cyd 30.00$                 $          1,500.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Excavation, Earth 300 Cyd 40.00$                 $        12,000.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Non Haz Contaminated Material Handling and Disposal, LM 50 Cyd 75.00$                 $          3,750.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Subgrade Undercutting, Type II 50 Cyd 50.00$                 $          2,500.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 6 Ea 150.00$               $             900.00 900.00$          540.00$          360.00$                360.00$                
Subbase, CIP 65 Cyd 50.00$                 $          3,250.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Modified 1290 Syd 32.00$                 $        41,280.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Maintenance Gravel 50 Ton 40.00$                 $          2,000.00 2,000.00$       1,200.00$       800.00$                800.00$                
Approach, CI I 10 Ton 60.00$                 $             600.00 600.00$          360.00$          240.00$                240.00$                
Geotextile, Separator, Modified 1290 Syd 3.00$                   $          3,870.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Sanitary Service, Conflict 2 Ea 1,500.00$            $          3,000.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Abandoned Gas Main, Conflict 2 Ea 1,000.00$            $          2,000.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
HMA Surface, Rem 1240 Syd 5.00$                   $          6,200.00 6,200.00$       3,720.00$       2,480.00$             2,480.00$             
HMA, 3EML @ 3.5" 265 Ton 150.00$               $        39,750.00 39,750.00$     23,850.00$     9,085.71$             15,900.00$           
HMA, 5EML @ 2.0" 150 Ton 170.00$               $        25,500.00 25,500.00$     15,300.00$     10,200.00$           10,200.00$           
Cement 2 Ton 500.00$               $          1,000.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch 70 Syd 110.00$               $          7,700.00 7,700.00$       4,620.00$       -$                      3,080.00$             
Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 550 Ft 40.00$                 $        22,000.00 22,000.00$     13,200.00$     8,800.00$             8,800.00$             
Detectable Warning Surface, Modified 30 Ft 150.00$               $          4,500.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 14 Ft 50.00$                 $             700.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 905 Sft 10.00$                 $          9,050.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Sidewalk, Conc, 7 inch 740 Sft 20.00$                 $        14,800.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Curb Ramp, Conc, 7 inch 125 Sft 20.00$                 $          2,500.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Barricade, Type III, High Intensity, Double Sided, Lighted, Furn & Oper 2 Ea 150.00$               $             300.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Minor Traf Devices, Max $10,000 1 LSUM 10,000.00$          $        10,000.00 10,000.00$     6,000.00$       4,000.00$             4,000.00$             
Plastic Drum, Fluorescent, Furn & Oper 25 Ea 30.00$                 $             750.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn & Oper 265 Sft 10.00$                 $          2,650.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 10 Ea 150.00$               $          1,500.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Turf Establishment, Performance 300 Syd 10.00$                 $          3,000.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Post, Steel, 3 lb 50 Ft 10.00$                 $             500.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Sign, Type III. Erect, Salv 4 Ea 75.00$                 $             300.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Sign, Type III, Rem 4 Ea 20.00$                 $               80.00 -$                -$                      -$                      
Miscellaneous Work Items 1 LSUM  $        20,000.00  $        20,000.00 20,000.00$     12,000.00$     8,000.00$             8,000.00$             
SUB TOTALS 288,180.00$       140,550.00$   84,330.00$     46,325.71$           56,220.00$           

ENGINEERING AT 15% ASSESSABLE COST 43,227.00$         21,082.50$     12,649.50$     6,948.86$             8,433.00$             
ADMINISTRATIVE AT 5% ASSESSABLE COST 14,409.00$         7,027.50$       4,216.50$       2,316.29$             2,811.00$             
GRAND TOTALS 345,816.00$       168,660.00$   101,196.00$   55,590.86$           67,464.00$           

Page 1



WOODLAWN AVENUE FROM MONROE STREET TO CORUNNA AVENUE (M-71) SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 2026-02 RESO 2
MAJOR STREET

WEST SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

Monroe St Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 050-420-001-015-00 100 0.6 60.00 $82.38 $4,942.80 I1
Corunna Ave Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 050-420-001-014-00 50 1 50.00 $82.38 $4,119.00 I1

518 Woodlawn Consumers Energy, Co 050-542-000-028-00 55.21 1 55.21 $82.38 $4,548.20 I1
512 Woodlawn Sutliff, Roger 050-542-000-027-00 68 1 68.00 $82.38 $5,601.84 I1
638 Corunna Ave Carlson, Lonnie J 050-542-000-026-00 132 1 132.00 $82.38 $10,874.16 GBD

405.21 365.21 $30,086.00

EAST SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

S Gould St Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 050-542-000-048-00 100 0.6 60.00 $82.38 $4,942.80 I1
S Gould St Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 050-542-000-047-00 50 1 50.00 $82.38 $4,119.00 I1
Woodlawn Ave Consumers Energy, Co 050-542-000-030-00 90 1 90.00 $82.38 $7,414.20 GBD

515 Woodlawn Ave Carlson, Lonnie J 050-542-000-031-00 50 1 50.00 $82.38 $4,119.00 GBD
702 Corunna Ave Carlson, Lonnie J 050-542-000-029-00 123.74 1 123.74 $82.38 $10,193.70 GBD

413.74 373.74 $30,788.70

818.95 TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET: 738.95 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENTS: $60,874.70TOTAL FRONT FEET:

ZONING
TYPE

ZONING
TYPE



WOODLAWN AVENUE FROM MONROE STREET TO CORUNNA AVENUE (M-71) SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 2026-02 RESO 2
MAJOR STREET

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE ASSESSABLE AMOUNT $168,660.00
TOTAL FRONT FOOTAGE 818.95

CALCULATING ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE AND AMOUNTS:
PROPERTY TYPE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY COMMERCIAL PROPERTY TOTAL
TOTAL ASSEMENT PER TYPE $168,660.00 $168,660.00
CITY SHARE > 60% $113,069.14 $101,196.00
PROPERTY SHARE @ <40% $55,590.86 $67,464.00
FRONT FOOT RATE: PROP SHARE/TOTAL FRONT FOOTAGE: $67.88 $82.38
TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET PER TYPE: 0.00 738.95
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENT PER TYPE: $0.00 $60,874.70 $60,874.70

SUMMARY: SPECIAL ASSESSMENT AMOUNTS PER SIDE OF STREET:
WEST SIDE 30,086.00$                      
EAST SIDE 30,788.70$                      
TOTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 60,874.70$                      





MEMORANDUM 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

DATE: January 20, 2026 

TO: Mayor Teich and City Council 

FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 

SUBJECT:  Increase Purchase Order for Bulk Carbon Dioxide 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorization to increase Purchase Order with Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc. of Irving, Texas for bulk 
CO2 necessary for treatment of potable water in response to price increases by the supplier. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the October 6, 2025 meeting, Council authorized purchase agreement with Matheson Tri-Gas, 
Inc. for the supply of bulk CO2 to the Water Filtration Plant. Now Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc. is 
utilizing their ability to increase their price due to recent cost increases, see table below. This 
necessitates an increase to the previously approved purchase order. 

Chemical New Price Old Price 
CO2 $0.12/pound $0.11/pound 

or $240/ton or $220/ton 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

The current price increase to $240 per ton ($0.12 per pound) 
This pricing increase is 9.1% more than the previous price. As the initial 2025 price was $220 
per ton ($0.11 per pound), 2024 price was $210 ($0.105 per pound), 2023 price was $194 per ton 
($0.097 per pound, 43% higher than the year before), and 2022 price was $136 per ton ($0.068 
per pound). 
Funded from the Operations & Maintenance Budget account 591-553-743.000 
. 
CO2 estimated remaining usage for FY2025-2026 is 37 tons 
With an estimate 37 tons @ $240/ton for a cost of …………………........... ……....$  8,880.00 
Which is an estimated increase for the FY2025-2026 of ………………..………… $     740.00 
Bringing the total estimated cost of CO2 for FY2025-2026 to …...…………….. $17,020.20 



 
Document originated by: Ryan E. Suchanek 
 
Attachments:   (1) Resolution 
                       (2) Price Increase Notice 
    
Master Plan Implementation Goals:    3.4 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING INCREASE TO THE PURCHASE ORDER  
FOR BULK CARBON DIOXIDE WITH MATHESON TRI-GAS INC.  

DUE TO RECENT COST INCREASES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan approved a Purchase Order with 
Matheson Tri-Gas Inc. for the supply of bulk carbon dioxide for the FY 2025-2026; and 
 
WHEREAS, the recent costs have increased, and Matheson Tri-Gas Inc. is utilizing its ability to increase 
the price per pound necessitating amendment to said purchase order. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase carbon dioxide from Matheson Tri-Gas Inc. at the increased 
price of $0.12 per pound or $240 per ton with an estimated remaining usage of 37 tons 
for FY2025-2026: 

   
   
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Matheson Tri-Gas 

Inc., the estimated increase amount of $740.00 (estimated total of $17,020.20, which 
may exceed based on usage and actual need). 

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the water fund following delivery, and chargeable 

to account 591-553-743.000. 
 
 
 





MEMORANDUM 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

DATE: January 20, 2026 

TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 

FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 

SUBJECT: WTP – Valve Replacement Change Order #1 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval of increased payment for construction work by John E. Green Company (Saginaw, MI) 
for the Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Valve Replacement project in the amount of $11,134.00.  

BACKGROUND: 

The WTP Valve Replacement project scope includes the purchase and installation of two (2) 
replacement 20-inch butterfly valves with chain wheel operators. Valves #11 and #13 through #18 
are scheduled for replacement, generally two at a time. New gaskets will be installed for all seven 
(7) valves. Between each set of replacements, WTP staff will chemically clean and refurbish the
removed valves, restoring them to working condition in preparation for their reinstallation in
subsequent phases of the project.

On October 7, 2025, the City received bids for the Valve Replacement Project at the Water 
Treatment Plant (WTP). The 20-inch valves included in this project are critical to maintaining 
proper system flow and effective operational control at the facility. 

On October 20, 2025, City Council approved the low responsive bid from John E. Green Company 
(Saginaw, MI) for the WTP Valve Replacement Project in the amount of $59,000.00. 

Recently, as part of the WTP Valve Replacement Project, it was discovered that the existing state 
of the pipe interior, specifically calcium build up, mechanical joints are unable to be separated. 
John E. Green proposes cutting an existing spool piece in half in order to dismantle.  After removal 
of the two spool pieces, the pipe can be cleaned and reinstalled with a pipe repair clamp. Thus 
this change in project scope requires a change order to the original contract with Jon E. Green 
Company. 

FISCAL IMPACTS:  

The project is funded by the Account No. 591-901-972.200, with the additional costs of 



$11,134.00. Final expenses in the amount of $70,134.00. 

Document originated by:  Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 

ATTACHMENTS: (1) Resolution
(2) Change Order

Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4 



RESOLUTION NO. 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

JOHN E. GREEN COMPANY OF SAGINAW, MICHIGAN FOR VALVE 
REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION AT THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with John E. 
Green Company, on October 20, 2025 for the valve replacement project, at the Water Treatment 
Plant (WTP); and 

WHEREAS, the project is now underway and a change order is necessary to reconcile contract 
work and supplies to be used. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to amend the Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Valve 
Replacement Project contract with John E. Green to increase the contract 
amount to update contract work and supplies to be used for additional work due 
to extraordinary calcium buildup. 

SECOND: The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 
substantially in form attached as Change Order No. 1 in the amount of 
$11,134.00; an increase to the Contract for Services between the City of Owosso 
and John E. Green, revising the total current contract amount from $59,000.00 to 
$70,134.00. 

THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to pay John E. Green for work 
satisfactorily completed up to the revised contract amount of $70,134.00. 

FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from Account No. 591-901-972.200 



SAFETY •  QUALITY •  INTEGRITY •  SERVICE

UNCONTROLLED WHEN PRINTED – Contract/ Change Order – OPF233.00 – 7/1/2019 – Approved: Rob Martin 

John E. Green Company 
220 Victor Avenue 

Highland Park, MI  48203 
P: 313-868-2400 • F: 313-868-0011

johnegreen.com 

CHANGE ORDER
PROJECT: City of Owosso WFP CONTRACT INFORMATION: CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION: 

 20” Valve Replacement Contract for: 000047346 Change Order Number: 001 

Date: 10/22/2025 Date: 1/12/2026 

OWNER: City of Owosso ARCHITECT/ ENGINEER: Fishbeck 
 1111 Allendale Ave 
 Owosso, MI 48867 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

With the existing state of the pipe interior (calcium build-up), mechanical joints are unable to be separated. JEG 
proposes cutting an existing spool piece in half in order to dismantle.  After removal of the two spool pieces, the 
pipe can be cleaned and reinstalled with a pipe repair clamp. 

The original (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price) was $ 59,000.00 

The net change by previously authorized Change Orders $ 0.00 

The (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price) prior to this Change Order was $ 59,000.00 

The (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price) will be (increased) (decreased) 
(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of $ 11,134.00 

The (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price), including this Change Order, will be $ 70,134.00 

The Contract Time will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by ( 0 ) days 

The new date of Substantial Completion will be 6/30/2026 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT or ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR, AND OWNER. 

JOHN E. GREEN COMPANY 

ARCH./ ENGIN. (Firm name) CONTRACTOR OWNER (Firm name) 

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 

Jake Shook – Project Manager 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 

1/12/2026 

DATE DATE DATE 



202 S. WATER   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  

MEMORANDUM 
DATE:  December 18, 2025 

TO:  Owosso City Council 

FROM:  Kevin Lenkart 
Chief of Public Safety 

RE:  Contract Authorization - Owosso Charter Township Ambulance Service 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the contract between The City of Owosso (Owosso) and Owosso 
Charter Township (Township) to have Owosso provide ambulance coverage to Owosso Charter 
Township, Shiawassee County Michigan.  

Background: 

The Township wishes to renew the contract with Owosso to provide ambulance coverage to the 
residents of Owosso Charter Township.  

Since April 1, 2024, the Owosso Fire Department has provided ambulance coverage to Owosso 
Charter Township. This contract will renew our current agreement with the township.  

Fiscal Impacts: 

The Township shall pay the city the sum of $120.00 per residence plus its charges for businesses, 
churches, and campgrounds.  



RESOLUTION _____ 
 

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR AMBULANCE 
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND OWOSSO 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Safety Department and 
Owosso Charter Township desire to renew  the contract  for the provision of ambulance coverage 
to Owosso Charter Township by the City of Owosso Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Owosso operates a Fire Department which has the ability to provide said 
ambulance service to Owosso Charter Township.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and 
in the public interest to enter into an agreement with Owosso Charter Township to 
provide ambulance coverage to the township.  

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the documents in 

the form attached, Contract for Ambulance Services with Owosso Charter 
Township/City of Owosso. 













MEMORANDUM 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

DATE:   January 20, 2026 

TO:      Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 

FROM:  Ryan Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 

SUBJECT:   Engineering Services for 2026 DWSRF Water Main Replacement Project-Contract 1 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of the proposal provided by Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.  in the amount of 
$377,600.00, for design engineering and construction administration services for the 2026 DWSRF Water 
Main Replacement Project-Contract 1, construction administration is contingent upon the city securing 
FY2026 DWSRF funding. 

 BACKGROUND  

As part of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) project during the 2026 construction 
season, the City of Owosso is preparing plans to replace water mains on: 

• Clinton St (S. Cedar to S. Shiawassee/M52)
• Gilbert St (Mason to Oliver)
• Williams St (Shiawassee/M52 to Washington)
• Dewey St (Main/M21 to Oliver)
• Mason St (N. Dewey to Gilbert)

In addition to the water main work, this proposal also includes design engineering and construction 
administration services for: 

• Gilbert St (Mason to Oliver):
o Street reconstruction with select storm water replacement
o 8” and 10” sanitary sewer replacement

• Dewey St (Exchange to Mason)
o 12” sanitary sewer replacement

Construction engineering services are necessary for quality control, construction oversight, and final 
acceptance of the project. Attached is a copy of the Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.proposal. 

FISCAL IMPACTS  

Funds for design engineering and construction administration (construction administration is contingent 
upon the City receiving FY2026 DWSRF funding) services in the amount of $377,600.00 will be issued 
from: Water fund account number 591-901-972.000-DWSRF792001, Sanitary Sewer Fund 590-901-
973.000, Local Street Fund Account No. 203-451-818.000, and other funds as appropriate. 



 
 
ENCLOSURES: (1) Resolution 
 (2) Fleis & Vandenbrink Proposal  
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 3.4, 3.7, 5.3, 5.27, 6.6 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT ADDENDUM NO. 2026-02 
TO THE FY2025-2026 GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 

WITH FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC., FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
FOR THE 2026 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT-CONTRACT 1 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc., on June 5, 2023, and renewed said contract on June 16, 2025 for the 
term of July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 for general engineering services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to make necessary upgrades to its water distribution system through the 
State of Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (DWSRF) for Fiscal Year 2026; and  
 
WHEREAS, this work requires the services of a professional engineering firm to complete design 
engineering and construction engineering of the project; and 
  
WHEREAS, Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc., has submitted a proposal to perform such work 
and offers to complete design and construction engineering services of said project, in an amount not to 
exceed $377,600.00. 
  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ the firm of Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc., to provide 
design and construction engineering services for the 2026 DWSRF Water Main 
Replacement Project-Contract 1. 

  
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

as an Agreement for General Engineering Services between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. 

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$377,600.00 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc., upon successful completion 
of engineering work, and construction administration is contingent upon the City receiving 
FY2026 DWSRF funding. 

 
FOURTH: The above engineering expenses shall be paid per their specific category, from the 

following funds: Water Fund Acct No. 591-901-972.000-DWSRF792001, Sanitary Sewer 
Fund 590-901-973.000, Local Street Fund Account No. 203-451-818.000, and other 
funds as appropriate. 

 























ADDENDUM NO. 2026-02 TO AN AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 

 
This addendum is attached and made part of the agreement for professional  engineering  services dated 
May 15, 2017  between the city of Owosso, Michigan (owner) and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. 
(Engineer) providing for professional  services. 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2026-02 
 

2026 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT ENGINEERING SERVICES – CONTRACT 1 
 
 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The project scope of work is attached as a proposal for the City of Owosso:  2026 DWSRF Water Main 
Project – Contract 1. 
 
 

COMPENSATION 
 
The cost proposal of the engineer for the project is attached as Addenda:  Cost Proposal.  Design 
Engineering which totals $79,100.00 and Construction Administration in the amount of $298,500.00.   The 
engineer shall submit for payment based on monthly progress of the work. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the date indicated 
below. 
 
Approved January 20, 2026. 
 
For the engineer:    
   

Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.
   

 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Executed: ______________________________ 
 

For the owner:       
 
City of Owosso, Michigan 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________
 Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
By: ___________________________________
 Amy K. Kohagen, City Clerk 
 
 
Executed: ______________________________

 



MEMORANDUM 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

DATE:   January 20, 2026 

TO:      Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 

FROM:  Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 

SUBJECT:   Engineering Services for 2026 DWSRF Water Main Project-Contract 2 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of the proposal provided by Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Hubber, Inc., DBA Fishbeck, in the 
amount of $358,400.00, for design and construction engineering services for the 2026 DWSRF Water 
Main Replacement Project-Contract 2, construction administration is contingent upon the City receiving 
FY2026 DWSRF funding. 

 BACKGROUND  

As part of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) project during the 2026 construction 
season, the City of Owosso is preparing plans to replace water mains on: 
Genesee St (Michigan to Green and Green St from Genesee to Cass) 
Adams St (Oliver to King) 
Tracy St (Frederick to Stewart) 
Brandon St (Summitt to Dingwall) 
Dingwall Dr (Brandon to north end) 
Nafus St (Stewart to north end) 
Woodlawn Ave (Farr to Auburndale) 

In addition to the water main work, this proposal also includes design engineering and construction 
administration services for: 

• Genesee St (Michigan to Green and Green St from Genesee to Cass):
o Installation of supplemental catch basins at the Genesee and Green intersection along

with a new storm sewer outlet to the river including riverbank installation

On January 8, 2026, the City received proposals from five of its QBS selected firms for engineering 
services for the 2026 DWSRF Water Main Project. These services are necessary for quality control and 
construction oversight of the project. All proposals were evaluated based on, 1) Firm’s history & 
capabilities to perform similar projects, 2) Key personnel assigned, 3) Performance measures, and 4) 
Pricing.  Fishbeck is considered the most qualified to provide services for this project based on the 
proposal submitted.  Specifically, Fishbeck has a history with similar DWSRF projects, a strong staff, and 
a longstanding consistency of strong performance with the City of Owosso.  Attached is a copy of the 
Fishbeck’s proposal. 

Firms listed in ranked order with scores (out of 600 total points) are: 
• Fishbeck    570 points 
• Spicer Group    565 points 
• ENG, Inc.    525 points 
• Fleis & Vandenbrink   445 points 



• OHM Advisors    395 points 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS          
  
Funds for design engineering and construction administration (construction administration is contingent 
upon the City receiving FY2026 DWSRF funding) services in the amount of $358,400.00 will be issued 
from: Water fund account number 591-901-972.000-DWSRF792001, Sanitary Sewer Fund 590-901-
973.000, and other funds as appropriate.  
 
 
ENCLOSURES: (1) Resolution  
 (2) Fishbeck Proposal 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 3.4, 3.7, 5.3, 5.27, 6.6 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT ADDENDUM NO. 15 
TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBBER, INC., FOR DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR THE 2026 DWSRF WATER MAIN PROJECT - CONTRACT 2 
  
WHEREAS, the City desires to make necessary upgrades to its water distribution system through the 
State of Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (DWSRF) for Fiscal Year 2026; and  
 
WHEREAS, this work requires the services of a professional engineering firm to complete design 
engineering and construction engineering of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City sought proposals from its Qualification Based Selection (QBS) list of firms to perform 
such work; and 
  
WHEREAS, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Hubber, Inc., DBA Fishbeck is selected as the most qualified 
firm to perform such work and offers to complete design engineering and construction engineering 
services of said project, in an amount not to exceed $358,400.00. 
  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ the firm of Fishbeck to provide design and construction 
engineering for the 2026 DWSRF Water Main Project-Contract 2. 

  
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

as an Agreement for Engineering Services between the City of Owosso, Michigan and 
Fishbeck. 

  
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$358,400.00 to Fishbeck upon successful completion of engineering work, and 
construction administration is contingent upon the City receiving FY2026 DWSRF 
funding. 

 
FOURTH: The above engineering expenses shall be paid per their specific category, from the 

following funds: Water Fund Acct No. 591-901-972.000-DWSRF792001, Sanitary Sewer 
Fund 590-901-973.000, and other funds as appropriate. 

 











































ADDENDUM NO. 15 TO AN AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 
FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC. DBA FISHBECK 

This addendum is attached and made part of the agreement for professional  engineering  services dated 
May 15, 2017  between the city of Owosso, Michigan (owner) and Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. 
DBA Fishbeck (Engineer)  providing for professional  services. 

ADDENDUM NO. 15 

2026 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT ENGINEERING SERVICES – CONTRACT 2 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 

The project scope of work is attached as Proposal for the City of Owosso:  2026 DWSRF Water Main 
Project – Contract 2. 

SCHEDULE 

The schedule for the project is attached as Addenda:  Anticipated Design Schedule / Estimated 
Construction Schedule - Schedule shown beginning by January 21, 2026 and completed by July 4, 2026. 

COMPENSATION 

The cost proposal of the engineer for the project is attached as Addenda:  Pricing Proposal.  Design 
Engineering which totals $104,000.00, Construction Administration in the amount of $172,000.00, and 
Geotechnical/Archaeological in the amount of $82,400.00.   The engineer shall submit for payment based 
on monthly progress of the work. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the date indicated 
below. 

Approved January 20, 2026. 

For the engineer:  

Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. 
DBA Fishbeck 

By: ___________________________________ 

By: ___________________________________ 

Executed: ______________________________ 

For the owner:       

City of Owosso, Michigan 

By: ___________________________________
Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 

By: ___________________________________
Amy K. Kohagen, City Clerk 

Executed: ______________________________



301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    (989) 725-0599    FAX (989) 723-8854 

DATE:  January 12, 2025 

TO:  City Council  

FROM:  City Manager 

SUBJECT: Change Order #2 – City Hall Improvements Project – Engineering Services 

Background 

The City of Owosso entered into a professional services agreement with Spicer Group, 
Inc. for engineering and construction administration services related to the City Hall 
Improvements Project. The original project amount was $44,000.00. Previously approved 
amendment increased the total contract amount by $4,400.00, bringing the current 
contract total to $48,400.00. 

During the construction administration phase, the scope of professional services 
increased beyond what was anticipated in the original agreement. These additional 
services were required due to contractor performance-related issues, the need for extra 
site inspections, coordination and review of multiple change orders, and the calculation 
and documentation of airflow rate selections for the building’s variable volume HVAC 
system after the removal of the existing temperature control system. 

Spicer Group, Inc. has submitted a request for additional services in the amount of 
$5,200.00 to account for this expanded scope of work. 

Approval of Change Order #2 will increase the total professional services contract 
amount to $53,600.00. This expense is budgeted in account 101.265.975.000. 

Recommendation 

Approve Resolution No. ___ authorizing Change Order #2 to the professional services 
agreement with Spicer Group, Inc. in the amount of $5,200.00 for additional construction 
administration services related to the City Hall Improvements Project. 

MASTER PLAN GOALS:  3.8, 4.7, 6.7 



RESOLUTION NO. 

AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE  
CITY HALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT – ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 

WITH SPICER GROUP, INC. 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into a professional services 
agreement with Spicer Group, on December 2, 2024, for engineering and construction administration 
services related to the City Hall Improvements Project with an original project amount of $44,000; and 

WHEREAS, the previously approved amendment to the project increased the contract amount by 
$4,400.00, bringing the current total contract amount to $48,400.00; and 

WHEREAS, the scope of professional services increased during the construction administration phase 
due to performance-related issues, additional site inspections, coordination and review of multiple change 
orders, and the need to calculate and document airflow rate selections for the building’s variable volume 
air-handling system; and 

WHEREAS, Spicer Group, Inc. has submitted a request for Additional Services in the amount of 
$5,200.00 for work performed beyond the original contract scope; and 

WHEREAS, approval of Amendment No. 2 will increase the total professional services contract amount to 
$53,600; and 

WHEREAS, this is a budgeted item from account 101.265.975.000. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary, and in the 
public interest to approve Amendment No. 2 to the professional services agreement with 
Spicer Group, Inc. in the amount of $5,200.00 for additional construction administration 
services related to the City Hall Improvements Project. 

SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to approve the document 

THIRD: 

Request for Additional Services for Existing Professional Services Contract in the 
amount of $5,200.00; an increase revising the total current amount from 
$48,400.00 to $53,600.00. 

the Accounts Payable department is authorized to pay Spicer Group for work 
satisfactorily completed up to the revised amount of $48,400.00. 

FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the General Fund 101-265-975.000. 



                                                                                   ENGINEERS  SURVEYORS  PLANNERS  ARCHITECTS 

December 8th, 2025 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Project: Owosso City Hall Improvements 

To: Nathan Henne, City Manager 

City of Owosso, Michigan 

301 W. Main Street 

Owosso, MI 48867 

From: Andrew Farron, Project Manager 

Spicer Group, Inc. 

230 S Washington Ave. 

Saginaw, MI 48607 

RE: Additional Services for Existing Professional Services Contract 

Nathan, 

The scope of professional services for the Owosso City Hall Improvements project increased throughout the 

Construction Administration phase. We are requesting $5,200 in additional services for this added effort. 

The following are the services that Spicer Group has provided that were not included in the original 

agreement: 

1. Additional site visits/inspections – our agreement included a project kickoff meeting and final

punchlist inspection. Due to performance concerns, Spicer was asked to conduct a progress site visit

in November and is now expecting (2) punch list inspections due to scopes of work not yet complete.

2. Change orders – we have now coordinated and reviewed (5) change orders, also confirming the

billing documents match the new contract amounts.

3. Airflow rate selections – the controls contractor was instructed to record the minimum and

maximum airflow rates for each variable volume box prior to removing the existing Johnson

Controls temperature control system. This task was not completed and Spicer now needs to calculate

and provide these values.

Please reach out if you have any remaining questions regarding this request. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Andrew Farron, Project Manager 

Mobile: 231-499-9400 

andrew.farron@spicergroup.com 

mailto:Aaron.wosek@spicergroup.com


AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO 

A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH 

SPICER GROUP, INC. 

CITY HALL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

This amendment is attached and made part of the contract for services for the City Hall Improvements 
Project – Engineering Services Contract, authorized by City Council December 2, 2024, between the city 
of Owosso, Michigan (City) and Spicer Group, Inc. (Contractor).  

 

CITY HALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT – ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 

The project scope of work is increased to include the additional services shown on the attached Request 
for Additional Services, dated December 8, 2025.  

SCHEDULE 

The schedule for the project remains as stated in the original contract.  

COMPENSATION 

The additional services proposed are not to exceed $5,200.00.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and date 
first above written. 

 

For the Contractor:     For the City: 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

Its:__________________________________ 

 

By:__________________________________ 

Its:__________________________________ 

Executed: ______________________, 2026 

 

By: ________________________________________ 
Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 

 

By:_________________________________________ 
Amy Kohagen, City Clerk 

 
 

Executed: ______________________, 2026 

 



Warrant 661 
January 7 2026 

Date Vendor Description Fund Amount 

1-7-2026 Waste Management WWTP Refuge Disposal Services WWTP $10,366.20 

1-8-2026 Caledonia Twp 25% payment per Water District Agreement Water $73,886.07 

1-8-2026 Owosso Twp 25% payment per Water Agreement Water $22,242.59 

$106,494.86 



STATEMENT REGARDING BUSINESS DEALINGS WITH THE CITY
Per Owosso City Charter Section 14.4 and Michigan Public Act 317 of 1968, as amended

I, Carl Ludington, being an officer of the City of Owosso, do hereby declare a pecuniary 
interest in the foregoing proposed contract(s) with the City of Owosso as described as: 

For the Period of: December 1 – December 22 2025

Vendor: Ludington Electric, Inc

Total Amount: 757.74

Detailed information for the listed amount is attached to this statement.

I am making this declaration because I am the owner/operator of Ludington Electric, Inc.

I confirm that I will not vote on the matter(s) in question, I will not take part in discussion 
on any question in respect to the matter(s), and I will not attempt in any way whether 
before, during or after the meeting to influence the voting on any such question at a 
public meeting of the Owosso City Council.

Said items will be considered for approval at the ___January 20 2026__ meeting of the 
Owosso City Council.

Carl Ludington
Signature Date

Declared: January 5 2026



12/22/2025                                         CUSTOM PURCHASE ORDER REPORT                                                    

PURCHASE
ORDER REQUESTED VENDOR AMOUNT REMAINING

PO NUMBER TYPE BY DEPARTMENT NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT RELIEVED  BALANCE

PO STATUS: OPEN
PO TYPE: QUICK PO
000047425 QUICK PO tswheeler 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. REPLAING THE BURNED UP WIRES ON WASHINGTON STREET 185.26 0.00 185.26
000047456 QUICK PO tswheeler 862 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. NEW 20 AMP CIRCUIT FOR CHRISTMAS TREE. 452.48 0.00 452.48
000047501 QUICK PO DHHaut 863 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. INVOICE NO.: 28935 9-26-25-REPLACED (1) CONTACTOR SILO 120.00 0.00 120.00
    TOTAL PO TYPE: QUICK PO 757.74 0.00 757.74

    TOTAL PO STATUS: OPEN 757.74 0.00 757.74

757.74 0.00 757.74







RESOLUTION NO. 
 

AUTHORIZING DISCHARGE OF HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAM  
MORTGAGE FOR 520 COMSTOCK STREET 

     
WHEREAS, on December 3, 1997 the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan filed a lien 
on the property at 520 Comstock Street after a $3,400 loan was issued by the City's Housing 
Rehabilitation Program; and 
     
WHEREAS, as the terms of this loan can no longer be determined, the statute of limitations on said loan 
has expired, and a majority of Housing Rehab loans were forgivable after a set period of time staff 
recommends discharge of the mortgage to clear the way for private sale.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:        it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
discharge its mortgage lien for the Housing Rehabilitation Program loan for the property 
located at 520 Comstock Street. 

 
SECOND:   the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Housing Rehabilitation Program Mortgage Discharge of 
Rehabilitation Mortgage. 





301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    (989) 725-0599    FAX (989) 723-8854 

DATE:  January 12, 2025 

TO:  City Council  

FROM:  City Manager 

SUBJECT: Charter Amendment – Chapter 15, Section 4 – Collection of Delinquent 
Utility Charges 

Background 

As part of the City Council’s Fiscal Year 2025–26 annual goals, Council directed staff to 
pursue a charter amendment to modernize the City’s approach to the collection of 
delinquent municipal utility charges, specifically unpaid water bills. 

Chapter 15, Section 4 of the Owosso City Charter currently fixes the timing for placing 
delinquent utility charges on the property tax roll to a single annual cycle tied to quarterly 
billing. This structure limits the City’s flexibility, constrains utility fund cash flow, and 
contributes to the continued use of water shutoffs as an enforcement mechanism for 
nonpayment. 

The proposed charter amendment would allow City Council, by resolution, to establish 
when unpaid utility charges may be placed on the tax roll, provided that such placement 
occurs at least once per year but no more than twice per year. This change is intended to: 

• Provide flexibility to place delinquent charges on both the summer and winter tax
rolls if Council so chooses;

• Support the potential elimination of water shutoffs for nonpayment;
• Preserve adaptability should the City transition to a different billing cycle in the

future, including monthly billing; and
• Maintain compliance with state law while avoiding the need for future charter

amendments tied to specific dates.

The attached resolution proposes the charter amendment pursuant to the Home Rule City 
Act and approves the ballot language for submission to voters at the August 4, 2026 
regular election. The accompanying public notice includes the ballot question, full text of 
the proposed amendment, and election information as required by statute. 



Recommendation 

Approve the resolution proposing a Charter amendment to Chapter 15, Section 4 of the 
Owosso City Charter and approving ballot language for submission to the voters at the 
August 4, 2026 regular election, consistent with City Council’s Fiscal Year 2025–26 
annual goals. 

MASTER PLAN GOALS:  3.1, 3.3 



RESOLUTION NO. 

PROPOSING CHARTER AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 15, SECTION 4 OF THE 
OWOSSO CITY CHARTER AND APPROVING BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR AUGUST 4, 

2026 ELECTION REGARDING THE COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY CHARGES 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Owosso, Michigan (the “City”), is authorized under the Home 
Rule City Act (1909 PA 279, as amended, MCL 117.1 et seq.) to propose amendments to the City Charter 
by a vote of at least three-fifths (3/5) of its members-elect; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 15, Section 4 of the Owosso City Charter governs the collection of municipal utility 
rates and charges, including the placement of delinquent utility charges on the City’s tax roll; and 

WHEREAS, the City currently bills municipal utility charges on a quarterly basis, resulting in delinquent 
utility charges being eligible for placement on the tax roll only once per year under existing Charter 
language; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to provide flexibility to place delinquent municipal utility charges on 
both the summer and winter property tax rolls, in order to maintain utility fund cash flow and to allow the 
City to discontinue water shutoffs for nonpayment, if Council so chooses; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council further desires to preserve flexibility in the event that utility billing cycles 
change in the future, including a potential transition to monthly billing, by authorizing the Council to 
establish delinquency and lien timelines by resolution rather than fixing specific dates in the Charter. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan, that: 

FIRST: The City Council hereby proposes that Chapter 15, Section 4 of the City Charter be 
amended to read as follows (new language underlined, old language struck): 

Section 15.4. - Collection of Municipal Utility Rates and Charges. 
a) The Council shall provide by ordinance for the collection of rates and charges for

public utility services furnished by the city. When any person fails or refuses to
pay to the city any sums due on utility bills, the service upon which such
delinquency exists may be discontinued and suit may be brought for the
collection thereof.

b) As permitted by law, the city shall have a lien upon the premises to which utility
services are supplied for such services and, for such purpose, shall have all the
powers granted to cities by law. The lien shall become effective immediately on
the distribution or supplying of utility services to such premises. In each case
where a lien to secure the payment of utility charges is not available to the city by
operation of law or otherwise, the Council shall require that an adequate deposit
by be made by the person to whom city utility services are furnished, for the
purpose of guaranteeing the collection of charges for such utility services.

c) Except as otherwise provided by law, all unpaid charges for utility services which
constitute a lien upon the premises to which they are supplied or furnished which,
on the last day of March of each year, have remained unpaid for a period of three
months or more, shall be reported to the Council by the Finance Director at the
first meeting thereof in the month of April. The Council thereupon shall order the
publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the city of notice that all such
unpaid utility charges not paid by the last day of April will be spread upon the
city's tax roll against the premises to which such utility services were supplied or
furnished, and such charges shall then be spread upon the city's tax roll, with a



surcharge of ten percent thereof added thereto to defray the cost of making such 
spread, and shall be collected in the same manner as the city taxes. 

c) Except as otherwise provided by law, all unpaid charges for utility services which
constitute a lien upon the premises to which they are supplied or furnished and
which have remained unpaid for a period of time established by resolution of the
City Council shall be reported to the Council by the City Treasurer at such time or
times as determined by resolution. The Council shall order the publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the city of notice that all such unpaid utility
charges not paid by the deadline established by resolution will be spread upon the
city’s tax roll against the premises to which such utility services were supplied or
furnished. Such charges shall then be charged upon the city’s tax roll, with a
surcharge of ten percent (10%) thereof added to defray the cost of making such
charge, and shall be collected in the same manner as city taxes. The City Council
may, by resolution, provide for the placement of such charges on the tax roll at
least once per year but no more than twice per year.

SECOND: The purpose of the proposed Charter amendment (as it will appear on the ballot) shall be 
designated as follows: 

Shall Chapter 15, Section 4 of the Owosso City Charter be amended to allow the 
City Council, by resolution, to decide when unpaid water bills may be added to 
property tax bills – at least once per year but no more than twice per year – to allow 
the City to end its policy of shutting off water service for nonpayment? 

THIRD: The full text of the proposed Charter amendment and, where relevant, the existing 
provisions of the Charter to be altered or abrogated, shall be published in full, as required 
by statute. 

FOURTH: The City Clerk is authorized and directed to transmit a certified copy of this Resolution —
along with the full text of the proposed amendment — to the Governor of the State of 
Michigan (and the Attorney General if required by law) for review and approval as 
required by statute. 

FIFTH: The proposed Charter amendment is to be submitted to the qualified electors of the City 
at the next regular election to be held on August 4, 2026. The City Clerk is directed to 
take all necessary and lawful actions to provide for the submission of the Charter 
amendment to the electors, including giving notice, publishing required material, and 
preparing ballots or voting machine language as required. 

SIXTH: If adopted by a majority vote of those voting on the proposition, the Charter amendment 
shall become effective in accordance with law and the Charter’s provisions. 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT AND ELECTION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that at the regular election to be held in the City of Owosso, 
Shiawassee County, Michigan, on August 4, 2026, the following proposed amendment to the 
Owosso City Charter will be submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Owosso. 

This notice is given pursuant to Act 279 of the Public Acts of 1909, as amended (the Home Rule 
City Act), and contains the ballot question and the full text of the proposed Charter amendment 
that will appear before the voters. 

BALLOT QUESTION 

Shall Chapter 15, Section 4 of the Owosso City Charter be amended to allow the City 
Council, by resolution, to decide when unpaid water bills may be added to property tax 
bills – at least once per year but no more than twice per year – to allow the City to end its 
policy of shutting off water service for nonpayment? 

FULL TEXT OF PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT 

(New language underlined; old language struck) 

CHAPTER 15 — UTILITIES 

Section 15.4. - Collection of Municipal Utility Rates and Charges. 

a) The Council shall provide by ordinance for the collection of rates and 
charges for public utility services furnished by the city. When any person 
fails or refuses to pay to the city any sums due on utility bills, the service 
upon which such delinquency exists may be discontinued and suit may be 
brought for the collection thereof.

b) As permitted by law, the city shall have a lien upon the premises to which 
utility services are supplied for such services and, for such purpose, shall 
have all the powers granted to cities by law. The lien shall become 
effective immediately on the distribution or supplying of utility services to 
such premises. In each case where a lien to secure the payment of utility 
charges is not available to the city by operation of law or otherwise, the 
Council shall require that an adequate deposit by be made by the person to 
whom city utility services are furnished, for the purpose of guaranteeing 
the collection of charges for such utility services.

c) Except as otherwise provided by law, all unpaid charges for utility services



which constitute a lien upon the premises to which they are supplied or 
furnished which, on the last day of March of each year, have remained 
unpaid for a period of three months or more, shall be reported to the 
Council by the Finance Director at the first meeting thereof in the month 
of April. The Council thereupon shall order the publication in a newspaper 
of general circulation in the city of notice that all such unpaid utility 
charges not paid by the last day of April will be spread upon the city's tax 
roll against the premises to which such utility services were supplied or 
furnished, and such charges shall then be spread upon the city's tax roll, 
with a surcharge of ten percent thereof added thereto to defray the cost of 
making such spread, and shall be collected in the same manner as the city 
taxes. 

c) Except as otherwise provided by law, all unpaid charges for utility services 
which constitute a lien upon the premises to which they are supplied or 
furnished and which have remained unpaid for a period of time established 
by resolution of the City Council shall be reported to the Council by the 
City Treasurer at such time or times as determined by resolution. The 
Council shall order the publication in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the city of notice that all such unpaid utility charges not paid by the 
deadline established by resolution will be spread upon the city’s tax roll 
against the premises to which such utility services were supplied or 
furnished. Such charges shall then be charged upon the city’s tax roll, with 
a surcharge of ten percent (10%) thereof added to defray the cost of 
making such charge, and shall be collected in the same manner as city 
taxes. The City Council may, by resolution, provide for the placement of 
such charges on the tax roll at least once per year but no more than twice 
per year. 

 

ELECTION DATE 

The vote on this proposed Charter amendment will occur on: 

Tuesday, August 4, 2026 
Polls will be open from 7:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m. 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

A complete copy of the resolution proposing this charter amendment is available for public 
inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, Michigan, 
during regular business hours. 

 

 



Owosso City Council

Building Department

Report Month:

From:

To: 

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

DECEMBER 2025

COMMERCIAL ALTERATION $141,906 $1,713 1
DECK $2,000 $150 1
DEMOLITION $153,500 $510 2
Electrical $0 $860 5
FENCE PERMIT $0 $170 2
Mechanical $0 $3,825 23
Plumbing $0 $910 6
RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $38,454 $475 1
RES. MOBILE NEW $150,000 $1,450 5
ROOF $18,416 $225 1
ROW-UTILITY $0 $100 2
SIGN PERMIT $0 $107 1
WINDOWS $10,482 $180 2

Totals $10,675 52$514,758

2024 COMPARISON TOTALS

$1,430,308 $22,180 52DECEMBER 2024











Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

1/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

12/16/2025 01/20/2026ENF 24-0655 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/17/2024FINAL NOTICE SENT NDEWEY ST

Total Entries 1

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH

12/09/2025ENF 25-0840 CLOSED 09/02/2025 12/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YMASON ST

12/09/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-0952 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCHIPMAN ST

12/22/2025 01/14/2026ENF 25-1082 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/22/2025LETTER SENT NGENESEE ST

Total Entries 3

BRUSH

12/15/2025ENF 25-1011 CLOSED 11/11/2025 12/15/2025RESOLVED NWOODLAWN AVE

Total Entries 1

BUILDING VIOL

12/08/2025 01/13/2026ENF 21-1156 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/01/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

12/08/2025 01/15/2026ENF 21-1484 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/27/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY VACSAGINAW ST

12/16/2025 01/20/2026ENF 22-0167 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/15/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

12/16/2025 02/02/2026ENF 23-0612 DEMO PENDING 06/20/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NEXCHANGE

Total Entries 4

BUILDING VIOLATIONS

12/08/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0346 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

12/08/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0916 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLYNN ST

12/01/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0987 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTATE ST

12/15/2025 01/15/2026ENF 25-0994 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

2/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/15/2025 01/15/2026ENF 25-1045 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

01/02/2026 01/19/2026ENF 25-1096 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025EMAILED OWNER COMMEXCHANGE

12/16/2025 01/26/2026ENF 24-1236 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/06/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGREEN ST

12/22/2025 02/02/2026ENF 25-1083 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/22/2025LETTER SENT NDEWEY ST

12/15/2025 02/16/2026ENF 25-0477 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/20/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

YOUNG ST

12/15/2025 02/16/2026ENF 25-1023 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/17/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSHIAWASSEE ST

12/15/2025 02/16/2026ENF 25-1077 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCHIPMAN ST

12/22/2025 04/10/2026ENF 25-1081 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/22/2025LETTER SENT NHOWELL ST

Total Entries 12

CHICKENS/DUCKS

12/16/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0321 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

12/15/2025 01/20/2026ENF 25-0323 LEGAL ACTION 04/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NRIDGE ST

Total Entries 2

DOORS IN VIOLATION

12/02/2025 02/11/2026ENF 25-1010 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDIVISION ST

Total Entries 1

FENCE VIOLATION

12/09/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0914 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/01/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHERMAN ST

01/02/2026 02/02/2026ENF 25-1093 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025LETTER SENT YMASON ST

Total Entries 2

FIRE DAMAGE



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

3/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 24-1816 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/08/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGUTE ST

Total Entries 1

FRONT YARD PARKING

12/02/2025ENF 25-0076 CLOSED 02/04/2025 12/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDIVISION ST

12/15/2025ENF 25-0695 CLOSED 07/21/2025 12/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMASON ST

12/08/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0979 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

12/11/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1070 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTATE ST

12/11/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1071 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NGEORGE ST

12/11/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1072 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NNAFUS ST

Total Entries 6

GARBAGE & DEBRIS

12/15/2025ENF 25-0862 CLOSED 09/08/2025 12/15/2025RESOLVED NWILLIAMS ST

12/09/2025ENF 25-0894 CLOSED 09/17/2025 12/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YMASON ST

12/01/2025ENF 25-1026 CLOSED 11/17/2025 12/01/2025RESOLVED NRIDGE ST

12/08/2025ENF 25-1040 CLOSED 11/24/2025 12/08/2025RESOLVED YGENESEE ST

12/16/2025ENF 25-1047 CLOSED 11/26/2025 12/16/2025RESOLVED NHICKORY ST

12/22/2025ENF 25-1084 CLOSED 12/22/2025 12/22/2025RESOLVED NMASON ST

12/09/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0937 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

12/03/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0981 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTCLINTON ST

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 24-1991 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/19/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY YBRANDON ST

12/16/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0696 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NYOUNG ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

4/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0929 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHAMPTON AVE

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1007 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 11/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NGRAND AVE

12/12/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1035 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/24/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER YWOODLAWN AVE

12/08/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1061 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/08/2025LETTER SENT NSTEWART ST

12/15/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-0982 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCLYDE ST

12/16/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1074 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YPINE ST

12/22/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1085 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NGENESEE ST

12/22/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1086 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YGENESEE ST

12/08/2025 01/13/2026ENF 23-1355 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

12/22/2025 01/13/2026ENF 25-1080 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/22/2025LETTER SENT YRIVER ST

12/16/2025 01/20/2026ENF 25-1055 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMICHIGAN AVE

12/16/2025 01/21/2026ENF 25-0844 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YKING ST

12/08/2025 05/14/2026ENF 25-0869 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/09/2025HOMEOWNER CALLED IN NLYNN ST

Total Entries 23

GARBAGE CANS

12/30/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1095 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YBALL ST

12/08/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1063 INSPECTION PENDING 12/08/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NWOODLAWN AVE

Total Entries 2

GARBAGE/JUNK IN ROW

12/02/2025ENF 25-0632 CLOSED 07/07/2025 12/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NPINE ST

12/09/2025ENF 25-1019 CLOSED 11/17/2025 12/09/2025RESOLVED NLYNN ST

12/02/2025ENF 25-1021 CLOSED 11/17/2025 12/02/2025RESOLVED NSTEWART ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

5/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/01/2025ENF 25-1027 CLOSED 11/17/2025 12/01/2025RESOLVED NFRAZER AVE

12/03/2025ENF 25-1034 CLOSED 11/19/2025 12/03/2025RESOLVED NSTATE ST

12/09/2025ENF 25-1041 CLOSED 11/25/2025 12/09/2025RESOLVED YMICHIGAN AVE

12/15/2025ENF 25-1042 CLOSED 11/25/2025 12/15/2025RESOLVED NGRAND AVE

12/15/2025ENF 25-1046 CLOSED 11/26/2025 12/15/2025RESOLVED YCOMSTOCK ST

12/15/2025ENF 25-1049 CLOSED 11/26/2025 12/15/2025RESOLVED NCLYDE ST

12/16/2025ENF 25-1050 CLOSED 11/26/2025 12/16/2025RESOLVED YCASS ST

12/09/2025ENF 25-1056 CLOSED 12/02/2025 12/09/2025RESOLVED NDIVISION ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0974 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/27/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NKING ST

12/09/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1053 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/02/2025LETTER SENT YWASHINGTON ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1054 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YROBBINS ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1060 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/08/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLYNN ST

12/16/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1066 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

12/16/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1075 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDEWEY ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1076 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YADAMS ST

12/23/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1087 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBRADLEY ST

12/23/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1088 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMASON ST

12/23/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1089 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMASON ST

12/30/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1094 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMASON ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

6/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/16/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1079 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWASHINGTON ST

Total Entries 23

HEALTH & SAFETY

12/08/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0978 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/28/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NPINE ST

Total Entries 1

HOUSE FIRE

12/09/2025 01/08/2026ENF 24-1057 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

12/16/2025 01/20/2026ENF 25-0860 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMICHIGAN AVE

Total Entries 2

HOUSE NUMBERS

12/01/2025ENF 25-0959 CLOSED 10/20/2025 12/01/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMKING ST

Total Entries 1

IMMINENT DANGER OF STRUCTURE

12/09/2025 01/13/2026ENF 22-0059 LEGAL ACTION 01/21/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY VACDEWEY ST

Total Entries 1

LIGHTING VIOLATION

12/02/2025ENF 25-0977 CLOSED 10/28/2025 12/02/2025RESOLVED NHIAWATHA DR

Total Entries 1

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS

12/01/2025ENF 25-0656 CLOSED 07/10/2025 12/01/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

12/09/2025ENF 25-0705 CLOSED 07/23/2025 12/09/2025RESOLVED YCORUNNA AVE

12/02/2025ENF 25-0967 CLOSED 10/22/2025 12/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSUMMIT ST

12/03/2025ENF 25-1006 CLOSED 11/05/2025 12/03/2025RESOLVED NHAMPTON AVE



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

7/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/08/2025ENF 25-1039 CLOSED 11/24/2025 12/08/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NAMENT ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 21-1578 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/14/2021OBTAINED PERMIT COMMROBBINS ST

12/16/2025 01/08/2026ENF 24-0890 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/21/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

12/01/2025 01/08/2026ENF 24-1789 PENDING 2ND TICKET 11/05/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NHARRISON AVE

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0647 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHOWELL ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0662 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0738 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

12/15/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0825 PENDING 1ST TICKET 08/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHICKORY ST

12/03/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-0989 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHOYT ST

12/16/2025 01/08/2026ENF 25-1078 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YWRIGHT AVE

12/02/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0704 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

12/08/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0737 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

STEWART ST

12/08/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0822 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NISHAM ST

12/08/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0945 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/13/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0951 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMACK ST

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-0988 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/30/2025LETTER SENT NSTEWART ST

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1012 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NKENWOOD DR

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1020 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/17/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NFREDERICK ST

12/09/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1028 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

LINGLE AVE

12/08/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1048 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/26/2025REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL COMMCHIPMAN ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

8/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/16/2025 01/12/2026ENF 24-1262 LEGAL ACTION 08/08/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

12/16/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1064 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YWASHINGTON ST

12/02/2025 01/13/2026ENF 24-0907 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/23/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACPINE ST

12/16/2025 01/13/2026ENF 25-0679 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

12/15/2025 01/14/2026ENF 25-0764 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/15/2025 01/14/2026ENF 25-0971 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/27/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHARRISON AVE

12/16/2025 01/14/2026ENF 25-1014 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROOKS ST

12/15/2025 01/15/2026ENF 25-0993 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NPRINDLE ST

12/16/2025 01/15/2026ENF 25-1032 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 11/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMEXCHANGE ST

12/16/2025 01/20/2026ENF 25-0082 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLMSTEAD ST

12/15/2025 01/20/2026ENF 25-0173 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

12/16/2025 01/20/2026ENF 25-0922 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOAK ST

12/16/2025 01/22/2026ENF 25-1015 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCLEVELAND ST

12/15/2025 01/28/2026ENF 25-0962 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/20/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NPRINDLE ST

12/15/2025 02/02/2026ENF 25-0965 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NJEROME AVE

01/02/2026 02/02/2026ENF 25-1090 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025LETTER SENT NCOMSTOCK ST

12/30/2025 02/02/2026ENF 25-1091 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025LETTER SENT NMAIN ST

12/15/2025 02/16/2026ENF 25-0628 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWRIGHT AVE

12/03/2025 05/13/2026ENF 25-1059 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/03/2025LETTER SENT INDLANSING ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

9/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

01/02/2026 07/01/2026ENF 25-1092 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/30/2025LETTER SENT NMASON ST

Total Entries 44

NO BUILDING PERMIT

12/16/2025ENF 25-1065 CLOSED 12/10/2025 12/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSHIAWASSEE ST

12/09/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-0947 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

12/16/2025 01/15/2026ENF 25-1058 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTCARMODY ST

Total Entries 3

RENTAL REGISTRATION

12/02/2025 01/16/2026ENF 25-1052 LETTER SENT 12/02/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED YOLIVER ST

Total Entries 1

SIGN VIOLATION

12/11/2025ENF 25-0964 CLOSED 10/21/2025 12/11/2025RESOLVED COMMCHIPMAN ST

12/15/2025ENF 25-1044 CLOSED 11/25/2025 12/15/2025RESOLVED COMMMAIN ST

Total Entries 2

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES

12/02/2025ENF 25-0682 CLOSED 07/16/2025 12/02/2025RESOLVED NLINGLE AVE

12/08/2025 01/08/2026ENF 24-1013 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/17/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NWASHINGTON ST

12/02/2025 01/12/2026ENF 25-1001 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NPRINDLE ST

12/11/2025 05/28/2026ENF 25-1067 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSHIAWASSEE ST

12/16/2025 05/28/2026ENF 25-1068 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NCEDAR ST

12/15/2025 05/28/2026ENF 25-1069 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NGRACE ST

12/01/2025 06/01/2026ENF 25-1037 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/24/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NYOUNG ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

10/10Code Enforcement Activity01/05/26

DECEMBER 2025

12/01/2025 06/01/2026ENF 25-1038 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/24/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NHIRAM ST

Total Entries 8

TIRES

12/08/2025 01/09/2026ENF 25-1062 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/08/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YAMENT ST

12/16/2025 01/13/2026ENF 25-1057 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCLEVELAND ST

Total Entries 2

TREE VIOLATIONS

12/11/2025 01/29/2026ENF 25-1073 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YOLIVER ST

Total Entries 1

VACANT STRUCTURES

12/15/2025 01/15/2026ENF 24-0728 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/01/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACADAMS ST

Total Entries 1

Total Records: 149 Total Pages: 10











CHARLES, NATHAN BUILDING OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 27

BOOTH, MARK MECHANICAL & PLUMBING INSPECTOR

Total Inspections: 20

HARRIS, JON ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR

Total Inspections: 14

FREEMAN, GREG CODE ENFORCEMENT

Total Inspections: 147

Grand Total Inspections: 208

Monthly Inspection List

DECEMBER 2025



720

698

22

403

338

44

877

10

23

1,695

Final Notices and Civil Infractions are in process for those properties that have not been inspected within the five year ordinance 

period.

Registrations are by property address.  A property address may have multiple units.

Rental Inspection Program

DECEMBER 2025

Properties that have not been inspected are mostly due to more recent/newer registrations.

Registered Properties

TOTAL UNITS

Apartments over Businesses

Properties Inspected

Properties Not Inspected

Single Family

Duplex

Owner Occupied Duplex

Multi-Family

Owner Occupied Multi-Family

Types of Registered Units and the Unit Count



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

ADULT USE RECREATIONAL RETAIL 

1 1 1 3

$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $15,000

AMPHITHEATER

2 4 3 9

$50 $50 $150 $250

BENTLEY PARK RENTAL

6 14 10 11 8 1 50

$150 $400 $250 $275 $150 $25 $1,250

GROWER LICENSE (Medical)

1 1

$5,000 $5,000

HARMON PATRIDGE PARK RENTAL

5 13 11 14 6 1 50

$150 $400 $325 $350 $175 $25 $1,425

1 1 1 1 4

$40 $40 40 $120

MOBILE FOOD VENDING (Food Truck License)

1 1

$150 $150

PROCESSOR LICENSE

1 1

$5,000 $5,000

PROVISIONING CENTER

1 1

$5,000 $5,000

RECREATIONAL GROW

2 1 1 4

$10,000 $5,000 $5,000 $20,000

RENTAL (Renewals)

5 3 10 2 20

$250 $150 $500 $100 $1,000

RENTAL REGISTRATIONS (New)

3 2 1 3 3 6 2 2 2 1 25

$150 $100 $50 $150 $150 $300 $100 $100 $100 $50 $1,250

RESIDENTIAL PARKING

1 1

$120 $120

TOTALS:

11 2 5 6 25 36 28 28 18 8 3 0 170

$10,520 $100 $200 $10,190 $5,950 $1,300 $765 $775 $10,425 $15,190 $150 $0 $55,565

CERTIFICATES & LICENSES ISSUED BY MONTH FOR 2025

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION (C OF A AND NOTICE TO PROCEED)



OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: January 13, 2026 

TO: Owosso City Council 

FROM: Kevin Lenkart & Eric E. Cherry 

Public Safety Chief & Police Department Captain 

RE: End of the year statistics and December 2025 Police Activity Report 

Master Plan Goal 3.1, 3.2 

December 2025 Police Activity 

The Investigative Services Bureau attended the monthly Mult-Disciplinary Team (MDT) meeting to discuss 

open sexual assault cases with our partners; Shiawassee County Prosecutors, Child Protective Services, Voices 

for Children and other law enforcement agencies. 

The Police Administration worked with total security to update building cameras and the door access control 

system. 

The Police Administration meet with our Axon representative and then City Hall staff to look into upgrades 

with our tasers, body cameras, in-car cameras, their officer safety plan, transcription technology and AI 

technology to save on reporting time to increase patrolling time. 

The Public Safety Administration and City Hall Administration meet with Veridus Advisors and the Spicer 

Group to outline the building improvements going into the Public Safety Building. 

The Owosso Police Department covered emergency calls in the City of Corunna for over 350 hours last month 

or around 11 ½  hours a day. 



2025 End of year Police Statistics 

Listed below are the December 2025 crime statistics, with a comparison to the prior five-year average for the 

month of December. 

 

December - 5 YEAR AVERAGE 

 

 

2021-
December 

2022-
December 

2023-
December 

2024-
December 

2025-
December 

December 
5YR AVG 

Part I Crimes 32 15 37 17 22 24.6 

Part II Crimes 73 78 91 70 65 75.4 

Violent Crimes 10 3 8 4 10 7 

Total Reports 160 151 174 139 145 153.8 

Felony Arrests 11 2 6 6 9 6.8 

Total Arrests 23 35 36 23 33 30 

Traffic Stops 133 192 112 48 66 110.2 

All Dispatched Events 881 991 921 606 717 823.2 



LAST 12 MONTHS 

 

 

2025-
Jan 

2025-
Feb 

2025-
Mar 

2025-
Apr 

2025-
May 

2025-
Jun 

2025-
Jul 

2025-
Aug 

2025-
Sep 

2025-
Oct 

2025-
Nov 

2025-
Dec 

Last 12 
Months Average 

Part I Crimes 23 18 30 18 25 13 26 23 21 32 33 22 284 23.67 

Part II Crimes 65 59 84 87 87 82 79 80 92 96 77 65 953 79.42 

Violent Crimes 7 2 10 4 8 4 7 5 6 13 8 10 84 7 

Total Reports 160 114 157 166 168 157 149 150 182 182 158 145 1,888 157.33 

Felony Arrests 5 5 6 8 8 15 12 7 4 5 7 9 91 7.58 

Total Arrests 22 20 27 33 35 42 37 28 31 26 26 33 360 30 

Traffic Stops 105 109 43 87 84 35 118 23 40 36 28 66 774 64.50 

All Dispatched 
Events 835 657 730 820 798 787 907 836 792 764 667 717 9,310 775.83 

 



Owosso Public Safety 
202 S. WATER   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: January 13, 2026 

TO: Owosso City Council 

FROM: Kevin Lenkart 

Chief of Public Safety 

RE: 2025 End-of-Year Public Safety Administrative Statistics 

2025 End-of-Year Administrative Activity Summary 

Public Safety Administrative Staff: Amy Higley and Danielle Gilbank-Braid 

The Public Safety Administrative Office processed a significant volume of requests and permits 

throughout 2025. Below is a summary of key administrative activities completed during the year: 

• Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests: 1,037

• Medication Collected Through Drug Drop-Off Program: 507 pounds

• Traffic Control Orders Issued: 23

• Peddler Permits Issued: 7

• Golf Cart Registrations Issued: 16

• Gun Permit Applications Processed: 58

• Sex Offender Registrations: 145

These figures reflect the ongoing administrative workload and support services provided by 

Public Safety staff to residents, businesses, and partner agencies throughout the year. 

Master Plan Goals: 3.1, 3.2 



 301  W.  MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867- 2958   ( 989)  725- 0580  

MEMORANDUM 
DATE:  January 13, 2026 

TO:  Owosso City Council 

FROM:  Kevin Lenkart  
Director of Public Safety 

RE:  December 2025 Fire & Ambulance Report 

Master Plan Goal: 3.1, 3.2 

Attached are the statistics for the Owosso Fire Department (OFD) for December 2025. The 
Owosso Fire Department responded to 248 incidents in the month of December. 

OFD responded to 13 fire or rescue calls and EMS responded to 235 EMS calls.  

Fire Calls EMS Calls 
Illegal Burning 1 City of Owosso 161 
Wires Down 1 Corunna EMS 7 
Rescue 0 Fairfield Twp. 4 
Car Fire 2 Laingsburg 2 
False Alarm 1 Middlebury Twp. 5 
Building Fire-
Owosso 1 Owosso Twp. 43 
Building Fire-Mutual 
Aid 1 Perry Area EMS 4 
Gas Leak 2 Rush Twp. 6 
Smoke Investigation 4 Out of County 4 
Total 13 Total 236 



 
In 2025, the Owosso Fire Department responded to 185 Fire/Rescue calls and 2,975 EMS 
Calls.  
 

Month 
Fire/Rescue 
Calls 

EMS 
Calls 

Total 
Incidents 

January 15 232 247 
February 15 232 247 
March 17 258 275 
April 19 242 261 
May 20 240 260 
June 19 254 273 
July 20 265 285 
August 10 253 263 
September 13 235 248 
October 12 264 276 
November 12 264 276 
December 13 236 248 
TOTAL 185 2,975 3,160 

  
 
 
  
 



REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF THE  
OWOSSO MAIN STREET & DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

CITY OF OWOSSO 

January 7, 2026, at 7:30 A.M. 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chair Daylen Howard at 7:31 A.M. 

ROLL CALL:  Taken by Lizzie Fredrick 

PRESENT:  Chair Daylen Howard, Vice-Chair Lance Omer, Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr., and 
Commissioners Jill Davis, Jon Moore, Karen Parzych, and Colin McCallum. Commissioner Bill Gilbert 
arrived at 7:34 A.M.  

ABSENT:  Commissioner Josh Ardelean 

STAFF PRESENT:  Lizzie Fredrick, OMS & DDA Director, and Brad Barrett, Finance Director 

AGENDA: 

MOVED BY MOORE SUPPORTED BY OMER TO APPROVE THE JANUARY 7, 2026, OWOSSO MAIN 
STREET & DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AGENDA WITH PUBLIC COMMENTS AFTER 
DIRECTOR UPDATES AND TABLING THE FISCAL YEAR 2025 AUDIT EXCERPTS UNTIL THE 
FINANCE DIRECTOR ARRIVES. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

MINUTES:  Fredrick noted that the December meeting minutes were not included in the January meeting 
packet by mistake. 

MOVED BY PARZYCH SUPPORTED BY TEICH TO TABLE THE DECEMBER 3, 2025, OWOSSO 
MAIN STREET & DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING MINUTES UNTIL 
THE FEBRUARY MEETING. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

REPORTS:  Fredrick reviewed the December Check Disbursement and Revenue & Expenditure Reports. 

Fredrick presented the December and 2025 reports for Electric Vehicle Charging Station Revenue, 
Unique Drivers, and Session Quantity. 

Fredrick confirmed that the NACS cables replaced the CHAdeMO cables on the Electric Vehicle Charging 
Stations on December 17, 2025. 

Fredrick noted that six CHAdeMO users charged a combined total of 20 times, generating $144.98 from 
January 1st to December 17th, and four NACS users charged a combined total of nine times, generating 
$84.53 from December 17th to 31st. 

Barret reviewed the Fiscal Year 2025 Audit Excerpts including the OMS & DDA’s financial position and 
activities, the Revolving Loan Fund’s balance, and the downtown streetscape debt repayment schedule. 

Fredrick presented the Fiscal Year 2025 Tax Increment Financing Report, Fiscal Year 2025 Impact 
Report, and the 2025 Main Street Program Assessment. 

INFORMATIONAL MEETING:  Fredrick presented a summary of the OMS & DDA’s activities, projects, 
and programming over the past six months. 



 

 

Fredrick reviewed upcoming projects including additional Main Street Meetups, the Volunteer 
Appreciation Party, new Social District signage, the Downtown Owosso Chocolate Walk, Main Street 
Plaza landscaping, plans for the Ground Bed Concrete Project, Steam Railroading Institute Historical 
Marker, and wayfinding and arch refurbishment. 
  
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 

 
1. 2025 Volunteer Awards: Moore presented the names of 12 volunteers nominated by the 

four committees for their 2025 contributions to OMS programming. 
 

Moore asked each Board Member to select three names to be considered for a special 
acknowledgement at the February 19th Volunteer Appreciation Party. 
 
Fredrick announced that Karen Parzych, Debbie Drenovsky, and John Hankerd received the 
most votes. 
 

COMMITTEE UPDATES: 
 

1. Design:  Parzych provided updates on plans for new Social District signage. 
 
Gilbert added that the Design Committee would like to get a-frames for the Social District 
establishments and noted the need for removal of any streetlight display brackets not being 
utilized. 
 

2. Organization:  Moore shared that the Organization Committee is updating the annual Sponsor 
Guide and briefly discussed hosting a 5k as a fundraiser. 

 
Fredrick confirmed that online donations and sponsorship payments are now possible through the 
TicketSignup platform. 
 
Moore announced plans for Board Spotlights to help the community get to know the Board 
Members. 

 
3. Promotion:  Davis provided updates on the Downtown Owosso Chocolate Walk taking place on 

April 25th including communications with the businesses and a potential increase in the ticket 
cost. 

 
Davis notified the Board of third quarter photo assignments for The Mattesons Photography 
contract. 
 

4. Economic Vitality:  Howard announced Rustic Owl Furnishings was selected as the January 
Business of the Month. 
 
Howard reminded the Board of the Downtown Business Owner Main Street Meetup scheduled for 
January 27th. 

 
DIRECTOR UPDATES:  None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Rachel Osmer noted some outdated attraction information on the Downtown 
Owosso webpage and asked whether the Owosso Main Street Committee meetings were open to the 
public. 

BOARD COMMENTS:  Howard asked Fredrick to respond to Osmer’s question. 



 

 

Fredrick confirmed the committee meetings are not public meetings following Roberts Rules of Order, the 
committees need additional volunteers, and the public can go to DowntownOwosso.org or email Owosso 
Main Street to inquire about attending a meeting to see if they would like to join.  

Davis said there is no formal policy on community members attending a committee meeting, but she 
would never turn anyone away wanting to get involved. 

Moore offered to add public attendance at committee meetings as a discussion topic at the January 
Organization Committee meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

MOVED BY OMER, SUPPORTED BY DAVIS TO ADJOURN AT 8:51 A.M. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

NEXT MEETING FEBRUARY 4, 2026. 



Regular Meeting of the Owosso Historical Commission 

Minutes of January 12, 2026 – 6:00 P.M. at Owosso City Hall 

PRESIDING OFFICER: Chairman Lance Little  

MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioners Rachel Osmer, Bill Moull, and Debra Adams 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Commissioners Steve Teich and Lorraine Weckwert 

CHAIRMAN LITTLE CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:00 P.M. 

APPROVE MINUTES – December 8, 2025 

Motion by Commissioner Osmer to approve with one correction to the minutes, supported by Commissioner 

Moull. 

Approved by voice vote 

APPROVE AGENDA – January 12, 2026 

Motion by Commissioner Moull to approve the agenda as presented, supported by Commissioner Adams. 

Approved by voice vote 

FINANCIAL REPORTS:   

Amy Fuller reviewed the Commission’s revenue and expense report and the end of year financial report from 

the Shiawassee Community Foundation.  

Denice Grace reported on the December numbers for Curwood Castle. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Building and Grounds Committee: No updates. 

Historic Appreciation Committee: The assessment rolls have been transferred to the state archives.  There were 

no additional updates. 

Time Traveler Committee: Lance and Amy met with the library.  They were very supportive. 

Educating our Youth Committee: The next meeting is 1/16.   

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 



Home Tour: Lance and Amy met with Sue Osika to discuss fundraising.  The Commission reviewed the house list 

and made suggestions for additional homes. 

 

Website: The Commission reviewed their website and made suggestions for improvements. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Motion by Commissioner Adams to accept the offer of a Savage Model 1899 rifle on 

loan for display.  Supported by Commissioner Osmer.  Passed by voice vote. 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:  

Commissioner Little shared information on the Michigan History Association’s annual conference.  There was 

also discussion on moving the March 9th meeting to 7:00 p.m. 

NEXT MEETING: Monday, February 9, 2026, 6:00 p.m.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Little adjourned the meeting at 7:13 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by:  

Amy Fuller, Assistant City Manager 


	260120CouncilAgenda
	ZoomNotice-260120
	260105CouncilMinutes
	Proclamations / Special Presentations
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. CDBG Housing Grant Application

	CITIZENS COMMENTS
	COUNCIL COMMENTS




	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Proposed Special Assessment Project - Woodlawn Avenue
	2. Purchase Order Amendment-Bulk Carbon Dioxide.
	3. Change Order- Valve Replacement Project.
	4. Contract Authorization – Owosso Charter Township Ambulance Service
	5. Bid Award — 2026 Water Main Replacement — Contract 1.
	6. Bid Award — 2026 Water Main Replacement —Contract 2
	7. Contract Amendment – City Hall Improvements Project – Engineering Services Contract
	8. Warrant 661


	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. Contract Approval-Ludington Electric
	2. MortgageDischarge-520ComstockStreet
	3. Charter Amendment to Chapter 15.4

	CITIZEN COMMENTS 
	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. Building Department Report - December 2025
	2. Code Violations Report - December 2025
	3. Inspections Report - December 2025
	4. Rentals Report - December 2025
	5. Certificates Report - December 2025
	6. Public Saftey End of the year Statistics
	7. Public Safety 2025 End of the Year Public Safety Administrative Statistics
	8. Fire Report - December 2025
	9. DDA 1.7.26 minutes
	10. OHC MINUTES  1.12.26

	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT

	SXe3P0qRkCcW_GMs0vTm16OAT: December 23, 2025
	SXe3P0qRkCcW: 


